TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD

MONDAY, 16TH SEPTEMBER, 2013

COMMITTEE ROOM 3, 14 CITY SQUARE, DUNDEE

AGENDA OF BUSINESS

Prior to commencement of business, the Chairman will present prizes to Andrew Duncan and
Lewis White of St Paul's Academy whose team were winners of a Bridge Design Competition
sponsored by the Tay Road Bridge Joint Board, as part of the Engineering for Life Festival
recently held in Dundee. The Chairman will also present prizes to the second placed team of
Angus Redford and Curtis Stroud-Thompson of Webster’s High School, Kirriemuir.

PART | - OPEN MEETING

1 MINUTE OF MEETING OF 17TH JUNE, 2013 - Page 1
{Copy enclosed).
2 ENGINEERING WORKS - Page 5

(Report No TRB19-2013 enclosed),

3 OPERATIONAL RESTRICTIONS AND CLOSURES - Page 9

{(Report No TRB17-2013 enclosed).

4 REVENUE MONITORING - 4 MONTHS TO 31ST JULY, 2013 - Page 13
(Report No TRB12-2013 enclosed).

5 CAPITAL MONITORING -4 MONTHS TO 31ST JULY, 2013 - Page 17
(Report No TRB13-2013 enclosed).

6 RESPONSE TO EXTERNAL AUDITOR’S ANNUAL REPORT ON 2012/2013 AUDIT OF
TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD

(a) EXTERNAL AUDITOR REPORT ON 2012/2013 - AUDIT TO TAY ROAD BRIDGE
- Page 23
{Copy enclosed).

(b) RESPONSE TO EXTERNAL AUDITOR'S ANNUAL REPORT ON 2012/2013 AUDIT OF TAY
ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD - Page 39

{Report No TRB14-2013 enclosed).
{c) STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS FOR YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2013 - Page 41

{Copy enclosed).
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7 INTERNAL AUDIT - AUDIT NEEDS ASSESSMENT AND STRATEGIC PLAN 2013/2016
- Page 91

(Repoit Nq TRB15-2013 enclosed).

8 INTERNAL AUDIT - ANNUAL AUDIT PLAN 2013/2014 - Page 127
(Report No TRB16-2013 enclosed).

9 REVIEW OF STRATEGIC RISK REGISTER - Page 139

(Report No TRB18-2013 enclosed}.

10 DATE OF NEXT MEETING

Monday, 16th December, 2013 at 11.00 am in Dundee.



At a MEETING of the TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD held at Dundee on 17th June, 2013.
Present:-

Councillors Jimmy BLACK, Will DAWSON, Ken LYNN, Bill CAMPBELL, Tom FERGUSON, Fraser
MACPHERSON, Margaret TAYLOR, Bili CONNOR, David GRAHAM (substitute for Brian
THOMSON]), lan SLOAN (substitute for Jim YOUNG), Andy HEER and Councillor Rob MURRAY
{substitute for SHEILA HANDS]).

i MEMBERSHIP

it was reported that Councillor Jimmy Black had replaced Councillor David Bowes as a member of the
Joint Board.

The Joint Board noted accordingly.
l ELECTION OF CHAIR

It was reported that the Joint Board required to appoint a Chairman in terms of paragraph 10 of
Schedule 1 to the Tay Road Bridge Order 1991.

Councillor Macpherson, seconded by Councillor Lynn, moved the appointment of Councillor Margaret
Taylor, o =

As an amendment, Councillor Graham, seconded by Councillor Sloan, moved the appointment of
Councillor Jim Young.

On a division, there voted for the motion - Councillors Taylor, Connor, Heer, Black, Campbell,
Dawson, Lynn, Macpherson and Murray (9); and for the amendment - Councillors Graham, Sloan and
Ferguson (3) - whereupon Councillor Taylor was appointed and took the Chair.

HI ELECTION OF VICE-CHAIR

It was reported that the Joint Board was required to appoint a Vice-Chairman in terms of paragraph 10
of Schedule 1 to the Tay Road Bridge Order 1991.

Councillor Dawson, seconded by Councillor Campbell, moved the appointment of Councillor Jimmy
Black. ' -

As an amendment, Councillor Graham, seconded by Councillor Sloan, moved the appointment of
Councillor Jim Young.

On a division, there voted for the motion - Councillors Taylor, Connor, Heer, Black, Campbell,
Dawson, Lynn, Macpherson and Murray (9); and for the amendment - Councillors Graham, Sloan and
Ferguson {3) - whereupon Councillor Black was appointed,

il MINUTE OF MEETING OF 4TH MARCH, 2013

The minute of the above meeting was submitted and approved.

I ENGINEERING WORKS

There was submitted Report No TRB12-2013 by the Engineer advising the Joint Board of the current
situation regarding engineering works on the bridge.

The Joint Board noted the position on current progress on various projects.

t\documentsitayrdbjbimins\20131170613.doc



v OPERATIONAL RESTRICTIONS AND CLOSURES

There was submitted Report No TRB6-2013 by the Bridge Manager advising the Joint Board of the
number and nature of operational restrictions and closures applied between 1st February, 2013 and
30th April, 2013.

The Joint Board noted the report.

v 2013/2014 INSURANCE PROGRAMME

There was submitted Report No TRB9-2013 by the Treasurer giving a overview of the insurance
arrangements for the financial year 2013/2014.

The Joint Board noted the report.

v UNAUDITED ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 318T MARCH, 2013

There was submitted Report No TRB12-2013 by the Treasurer providing additional commentary on
the unaudited Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2013 which was also submitted

to the Joint Board.

The Joint Board agreed fo:-

(i) note the contents of the covering report;

(i) note the unaudited Statement of Accounts which had been submitted along with the
report;

(i) instruct the Treasurer to submit this Statement of Accounts to the Controller of Audit,

Accounts Commission or Scotland; and

(iv) note that the key assumptions underpinning the independent actuaries’ calculation of
the Board's 1AS 19 liability had been reviewed and accepted by Dundee City Council
as administering authority for the Pension fund.

Vit EXTERNAL AUDIT-ANNUAL AUDIT PLAN 2012/13

There was submitted Report No TRB10-2013 by the Treasurer, outlining the External Audit Annual
Audit Plan for 2012.2013. :

The Joint Board noted the content of the external Audit Action Plan.
Vil INTERNAL AUDITOR'S ANNUAL REPORT
fa) INTERNAL AUDIT REPORT 2013/2017

There was stbmitted, for the information of the Joint Board, Internal Audit Report 2013/2017, prepared
by the Joint Board's Internal Auditor, Henderson Loggie.

The Joint Board noted the contents of the report.
(b) RESPONSE TO INTERNAL AUDITOR'S ANNUAL REPORT

There was submitted Report No TRB8-2013 by the Bridge Manager in response to the Annual Report,
prepared by the Board’s Internal Auditor, Henderson Loggie.

The Joint Board agreed fo:-

) endorse the report as a formal response to the Internal Auditor's report, and

i
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{ii) instruct the Bridge Manager to implement the Internal Auditor's recommendations as
set out In the report. ’

IX ADDITIONAL STAFFING POLICIES

There was submitted Report No TRB7-2013 by the Bridge Manager seeking approval of an additional
policy to be added to the drait handbook.

The Committee agreed that an additional policy, Special Leave Policy - Near Relative liness, be
added to the Staif Handbaook, as detailed in the report.

X DATE OF NEXT MEETING

Monday, 16th September at 10.00 am in Dundee.

PART Il - CONFIDENTIAL ITEM

The Joint Board resolved under Section 50(A)(4) of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973
that the press and public be excluded from the meeting for the undernoted item of business on
the grounds that it involved the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in
paragraphs 6 and 9 of Part | of Schedule 7A of the Act.

Xl DUNDEE CENTRAL WATERFRONT - LAND TRANSFER

There was submitted Report No TRB13-2013 by the Clerk and Treasurer advising the Joint Board of
the updated District Valuer's valuation and the City Council's request for the transfer of ownership of
two plots of Board land for the Central Waterfront Development.

The Joint Board updated valuation and agreed to transfer the land to the City Council, in accordance
with the District Valuer's Updated Valuation.

Margaret TAYLOR, Chairperson.
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REPORT TO: TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD — 16 SEPTEMBER 2013

REPORT ON: ENGINEERING WORKS

REPORT BY: ENGINEER TO THE BOARD

REPORT NO: TRB 19-2013

1 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1 To advise the Joint Board on the current situation regarding Engineering works on
the bridge.

2 RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 It is recommended that the Joint Board note the position on current progress.

3 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

3.1 There are no financial implications arising from this report.

4 SUSTAINABILITY POLICY IMPLICATIONS

4.1 There are no Sustainability Policy implications of relevance to this report.

5 EQUAL OPPORTUNITIES IMPLICATIONS

5.1 There are no equal opportunities implications of relevance to this report.

6 IMPLICATIONS TO BRIDGE USERS

6.1 There are no major implications for bridge users arising from this report.

7 BACKGROUND

71 Carriageway Resurfacing/Replacement of Expansion Joints

Reference is made to Article lll of the Tay Road Bridge Joint Board meeting of 4
March 2013 where it was advised that the existing carriageway surfacing is the
original asphalt surfacing laid in 1966 with a surface dressing applied in 1993/94,
The expansion joints at the end of each span of the bridge were replaced in the
early 1990's and they are now reaching the end of their design life.

Investigatory works are currently underway to determine the condition of the
surface dressing and the underlying asphalt surfacing with a view to identifying the
appropriate surfacing works required. A Ground Penetrating Radar (GPR} survey
to ascertain the current condition of the surfacing and concrete bridge deck has
recently been successfully completed. The survey resuits are currently under
review. The GPR survey is to be supplemented by coring and testing of the
asphalt surfacing and this is to be carried out in the near future.

Allowances of approximately £3.925 million have been made in the capital plan
over 2013/14 to 2015/16 to investigate, procure and carry out these works.



Report No, TRB-19-2013

7.2

7.3

It is anticipated that a full report with recommendations on the works required will
be brought to the Board in December 2013.

North Approach Viaduct Remedial Works

Reference is made to Article IV of the Tay Road Bridge Joint Board meeting of 17
June 2013 whereby the Board approved the procurement of the required remedial
works to the North Approach Viaducts up to the value of £160,000.

This item relates to the existing element of the North Approach Viaducts that is not
being renewed as part of the Dundee Waterfront works. Inspection works have
been completed and the repairs required to bring the reinforced concrete deck,
road surface and bridge expansion joints up to an appropriate standard such that
minimal works will be required for the foreseeable future have been determined.
Concrete repairs and protective coatings are required along with new bridge deck
waterproofing, expansion joints and road surfacing.

The cost of the works has now been determined as £112,945.65 and these works
are currently being undertaken to coincide with completion of the Dundee

.. Waterfront works to the ramps.

Dundee Waterfront - Removal and Reconstruction of Bridge Ramps

Dundee City Council awarded the contract for this stage of the works in August
2011 at a cost of £8.2 million. This stage involves the phased removal and
replacement of the remainder of the approach ramps to the Tay Road Bridge
including the construction of temporary diversion routes necessary for the removal
of the ramps. The works also include the construction of elements of roads,
drainage and services within the Waterfront Development.

The works to the remainder of the bridge ramps are to be carried out in a number
of phases over a two year period with completion by December 2013. Works

-started in January 2012 on the widening of the southbound on ramp at Customs

House to accommodate two wide lanes of traffic. These works were completed
and opened in late April 2012 with this being the only route onto the southbound
carriageway of the Tay Road Bridge for traffic.

These traffic management arrangements for access to and egress from the bridge
are those generally in place until the new ramps open in December 2013. These
new long term temporary arrangements continue to work well.

The new traffic arrangements enabled the on ramp at Tayside House to be closed
and demolition of the remaining bridge ramps started in early June 2012 and was
completed ahead of programme by the end of July 2012. The demolition material
from the ramps was crushed and graded for recycling as fill material in the
embankment of the new realigned bridge approach ramps. The new on ramps are
of reinforced earth construction with a granite clad facing to match the new
westbound off ramp.

Construction of the new realigned ramp is well underway, re-using the crushed
material within the vibro stone column piles and ground improvements structure
and in the embankment itself. The western side of the new approach ramps and
new South Marketgait Bridge at South Victoria Dock Road is now complete and
this opened to traffic in July 2013.



3 Report No, TRB-19-2013
Demuaiition of the original southbound on ramp at Customs House is also now
complete with all materials being recycled. Construction of the eastern side of the
new approach ramps and new South Marketgait Bridge is due to start shortly. This
element of work is programmed for completion by December 2013 thus
completing the works to the Tay Road Bridge approach ramps.

The works continue to progress well and are currently on schedule.

Further regular reports will be brought to the Board detailing progress with this
important project.

The Bridge Manager will continue to provide the Board with a monthly update on
progress.

8 CONSULTATIONS

8.1 The Clerk, Treasurer and Bridge Manager have been consulted in the preparation
of this report.

9 BACKGROUND PAPERS

9.1 None.

Fergus Wilson
Engineer to the Board

FW/EH

Dundee City Council
Dundee House

Dundee

5 September 2013






REPORT TO:
REPORT ON:
REPORT BY:

REPORT NO:

TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD — 16 SEPTEMBER 2013
REPORT ON OPERATIONAL RESTRICTIONS AND CLOSURES
THE BRIDGE MANAGER

TRB17- 2013

1 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1 To appraise the Joint Board of the number and nature of operational restrictions and closures
applied between 1 May and 31 July 2013.

2 RECOMMENDATIONS

The Board are asked to note the contents of this Report as at 31 July 2013.

3 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

There are no financial implications as a result of this report.

4 POLICY IMPLICATIONS

4.1 None.

5. COMMENTARY ON OPERATIONAL RESTRICTIONS AND CLOSURES

5.1 Restrictions are applied to the traffic on the bridge for a number of reasons including recovering
debris, breakdowns, high winds and other operational requirements.

A summary of the restrictions applied between February and April 2013 are given below:-

i)

Single carriageway closures

Reason Total No of Average
Duration | Occasions | Duration
{(Minutes) (Minutes)

Operational 766 177 42

Breakdown 174 21 8.3
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i)

Traffic Restrictions

Reason Single Total No of Average
Carriageway | Duration | Occasions | Duration
/Both (Minutes) {(Minutes)

High Winds

No Doubie Both 2095 6 349

Deck

Buses

Allowed

Cars Only Both Nil Nil Nil

Roadworks

TRBJB Single 357 9 40

External Single 220 2 110

Contractor

iii) Closures on both carriageways

Reason Full Total No of Average

Closure | Duration | Occasions | Duration
(Minutes) (Minutes)

Operational Yes 322 4 80

(Night

Closures)

High Winds Yes Nil Nil Nil

Other Yes 281 8 35

Incidents

iii) Availability of Bridge

Based on the above figures the various levels of availability of the bridge to users is as

follows:-

Full availability (No restrictions) 91.1%
Partial Availability (Some restrictions) 8.4%
No Availability (Full Closure) 0.5%
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Figure 1 — Comparison of Availability of Bridge to Users

As can be seen from Figure 1 the level of availability has remained constant over the period from
the previous quarter’s figures. Overall availahility has remained in excess of 89%.

6 CONSULTATIONS

6.1 The Treasurer, Clerk and Engineer to the Board have been consulted in the preparation of this

report.

7 BACKGROUND PAPERS

7.1 None

IAIN MACKINNON
BRIDGE MANAGER
22 August 2013
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REPORT TO: TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD - 16 SEPTEMBER 2013
REPORT ON: REVENUE MONITORING -4 MONTHS TO 31 JULY 2013

REPORT BY: THE TREASURER
REPORT NO:  TRB 12-2013 TTEM No-. %+

1 PURPOSE OF REPORT

The purpose of this report is to appraise the Joint Board of the current monitoring position of
it's 2013/2014 Revenue Budget.

2 RECOMMENDATIONS

It is recommended that the Joint Board note the content of this Revenue Monitoring Report
as at 31 July 2013.

3 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

3.1 The current outturn for the financial year 2013/2014 shows a break-even position based on
the financial ledger information up to 31 July 2013.

3.2 Following the removal of tolls the Board's Revenue Expenditure is now financed by an
annual Revenue Grant from Scottish Government.

Due to the fact that the Board's Revenue Expenditure is fully funded by grant any
underspend achieved will result in unspent grant being cartied forward, with the agreement
of the Scottish Government, to fund fuiure years' Revenue Expenditure. Underspends
achieved in previous years have resulted in a Revenue Grant Balance carried forward into
2013/2014 of £335,891. This balance will be used to fund any overspend in the current
financial year before any contributions are made from the General Fund Reserve Balance.

3.3 The projected break-even position, if it materialised, would result in a projected Revenue
Grant Balance carried forward of £335,891 at 31 March 2014. This level of Revenue Grant
Balance carried forward is subject to negotiation with the Scottish Government.

3.4  The projected break-even position, if it materialised, would result in a projected General
Fund Reserve of £1,160,591 at 31 March 2014. This level of retained reserves is subject to
negotiation with the Scottish Government.

4 RISK ASSESSMENT

In preparing the Board's Annual Revenue Budget, the Treasurer considered the key
strategic, operational and financial risks faced by the Board over this period. [n order to
alleviate the impact these risks may have should they occur, a number of general risk
mitigating factors are utilised by the Board. These include:

- a system of perpetual detailed monthly budget monitoring with latest positions reported to
quarterly Board meetings.

- the level of General Fund Reserve balances available to meet any unforeseen
expenditure.

- the level of other cash backed reserves available to meet any unforeseen expenditure.

- the possibility of identifying further budget savings and efficiencies during the year if
required.

- the possibility of identifying new income streams during the year.

TREB 12-2013 - REVMON-180813
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5 POLICY IMPLICATIONS
None

6 CONSULTATIONS
The Clerk, Bridge Manager and the Engineer to the Board have been consulted in the

preparation of this report.

7 BACKGROUND PAPERS
None

MARJORY STEWART
TREASURER 3 SEPTEMBER 2013

TRE 12-2013 - REVMON-180813



TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD

REVENUE MONITORING AS AT 31 JULY 2013

EXPENDITURE

Administration

Staff Costs

Property Costs
Supplies and Services
Transport Costs

Third Party Payments

Operations
Staff
Supplies & Services

Plant and Equipment
Property _
Supplies & Services
Transport

Third Party Payments

f

Bridge Maintenance
Staff

Property

Supplies & Services
Transport

Third Party Payments

GROSS EXPENDITURE

INCOME

Scottish Government Revenue Grant
Interest on Revenue Balances

Kiosk Rent
Miscellaneous

GROSS INCOME

TOTAL NET DEFICIT/(SURPLUS)

TRB 12-2013 - REVMON-18(913
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APPENDIX A
Expenditure

Revenue to Final Variance

Budget 31 July Projection from Paragraph

2013/14 2013 2013/14 Budget Reference

£ £ £ £

183,823 59,107 183,823 -
19,200 5,109 19,200 -
173,220 108,479 173,220 -
1,100 - 1,100 -
79,250 - 79,250 -
456,593 172,695 456,593 -
486,624 159,951 486,624 -
7,500 263 7,500 -
494,124 160,214 494 124 -
36,650 9,693 36,650 -
123,350 24,423 123,350 -
39,900 11,023 39,900 -
17,650 1,200 17,650 -
217,550 46,339 217,550 -
442,896 137,730 442 896 -
12,800 1,991 12,800 -
51,950 2,920 51,950 -
550 72 550 -
44,750 134 44,750 -
552,946 142,847 552,946 -
1,721,213 522,085 1,721,213 -
1,700,000 566,667 1,700,000 -
11,000 - 11,000 -
10,213 2,553 10,213 -
- 229 - -
1,721,213 569,449 1,721,213 -
- (47,364) - -
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REPORT TO: TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD - 16 SEPTEMBER 2013

REPORT ON: CAPITAL MONITORING - 4 MONTHS TO 31 JULY 2013
REPORT BY: THE TREASURER

REPORT NO: TRB 13-2013

1 PURPOSE OF REPORT

The purpose of this report is to appraise the Joint Board of the current monitoring position of
it's 2013/2014 Capitai Budget.

2 RECONMMENDATIONS

it is recommended that the Joint Board note the content of this Capital Monitoring Report as
at 31 July 2013.

3 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The Joint Board's 2013/2014 Capital Expenditure Programme of £740,000 was approved by
the Board on 10 December 2012 (Report TRB 28-2012). From 1 April 2008 the Board's
Capital Expenditure projects are being financed through Scottish Government Capital Grant.

Since the Capital Budget for 2013/2014 was approved, there has been slippage of £505,000
from the 2012/2013 capital expenditure programme into 2013/2014. This has been offset by
budget reductions in 2013/2014 of £525,000. The capital outturn for the financial year
2013/2014 (as detailed in Appendix A) is projected to be £720,000 based on the financial
ledger information up to 31 July 2013 and this will be funded from 2013/2014 Capital Grant
of £500,000 and Capital Grant carried forward from previous years of £220,000. This results
in a projected Capital Grant carried forward into 2014/2015 of £811,000.

TRE 13-2013-Cap Mon-1606913
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4

5.1

5.2

53

54

55

56

2
REASONS FOR CAPITAL EXPENDITURE INCREASE

The main reasons for the decrease of £20,000 can be summarised as follows:

£000
Slippage from 2012/2013:
Inspections to Columns & Piers 170
North Approach Viaduct Remedial Works 160
Carriageway Resurfacing 55
Gantry Miscellaneous 34
CCTV/ice Detection/CP Monitoring Equipment 35
Advance Warning Signs 51
Budget Adjustments:
Inspections to Columns & Piers (305)
North Approach Viaduct Remedial Works (160)
CCTV/ice Detection/CP Monitoring Equipment (60)
Total Budget Adjustments {20)

RISK ASSESSMENT

There are a number of risks which may have an impact on the Capital expenditure
programme for 2013/2014. The main areas of risk are set out below, together with the
mechanisms in place to help mitigate these risks.

Construction cost inflation levels remain relatively low, however they can on occasion be
relatively high in comparison to general inflation. Therefore delays in scheduling and letting
contracts may lead to increases in projected costs. Every effort will be made to ensure
delays are avoided wherever possible and any increase in costs minimised.

Slippage in the Capital programme leads to the need to reschedule projects in the current
year and possibly future years, therefore creating problems in delivering the programme on
time. For this reason the programme is carefully monitored and any potential slippage is
identified as soon as possible and any corrective action taken.

Capital projects can be subject to unforeseen price increases. The nature of construction
projects is such that additional unexpected costs can occur. Contingencies are built into the
budget for each capital project and these are closely monitored throughout the project.

There is risk associated with projects that are not yet legaily committed as the works are not
yet tendered for, and there is potential for costs to be greater than the allowance contained
within the Capital Plan. As the majority of spend on these projects is in future years, the risk
in the current year is not significant. Future years' Capital programme will be adjusted to
reflect updated cost estimates.

The Capital Monitoring report and the Engineer's report provide information on individual
projects contained within the Capital Budget and the impact of expenditure movements on
the future financial years.

POLICY IMPLICATIONS

None

TRB 13-2013-Cap Mon-180813



7 CONCLUSION

The Board's 2013/2014 capital programme is showing a projected capital spend of £720,000
which will be funded from Scottish Government grant.

The 2013/2014 capital expenditure programme will continue to be monitored on a regular
basis throughout the remainder of the current financial year.

8 CONSULTATIONS

The Clerk, Bridge Manager and the Engineer to the Board have been consulied in the
preparation of this report.

9 BACKGROUND PAPERS

None

MARJORY STEWART 3 SEPTEMBER 2013
TREASURER

TRE 12-2013-Cap Mon-150813
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REPORT TO: TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD ~ 16 SEPTEMBER 2013

REPORT ON: RESPONSE TO EXTERNAL AUDITOR'S ANNUAL REPORT ON THE
2012/2013 AUDIT OF TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD

REPORT BY: TREASURER =

REPORT NO: TRB 14-2013 TEM No: oo é’@‘) -

1 PURPOSE OF REPORT

4.1

4.2

4.3

This report is a response fo the report prepared by the Board's External Auditor on the
audit of Tay Road Bridge Joint Board for the year ended 31 March 2013. A copy of the
External Auditor's report and the Board's Audited Statement of Accounts are included on
the agenda as separate items.

RECOMMENDATIONS

It is recommended that the Board:

i endorse this report as the formal response to the External Auditor's report;

i notes that the External Auditor's findings and conclusions are favourable;

ii instructs the Treasurer to monitor the implementation of the agreed action plan
appended to this report.

FINANCIAL [IMPLICATIONS
None

MAIN TEXT

Introduction

The external audit of the Board for the financial year 2012/2013 was carried out by Mr
Stephen Reid, Engagement Director, KPMG. The Joint Board's External Auditors are

appointed for a five year period and the financial year 2012/2013 marked the second

year of KPMG's current appointment to the Board.

External Auditors Report

The External Auditor's report outlines his main responsibilities as auditor and describes
the scope of audit work undertaken during 2012/2013 and the issues arising from that
work. The report is divided into the following areas:

- Executive Summary

- Financial Position

- Financial Statements and Accounting
- Corporate Governance Arrangements

In addition to the Members of the Board, the External Auditor's Report is also addressed
to the Controller of Audit at the Accounts Commission for Scotland. Given this wider
audience, and the extent of the External Auditor's responsibilities and scope of work, his

. report is by necessity both fulsome and extensive. A copy of his report is included on

the agenda as a separate item. Accordingly, it is not the intention of this report to
provide a detailed response or commentary on all the External Auditor's findings.

TREB 1a-2013-FA REP-1605813
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4.4

| ] ] u n

Conclusions

During 2012/2013, the External Auditor examined a number of areas covering a wide
range of the Board's activities. Whilst some areas for improvement have been
identified, it is pleasing to note that the auditor's overall findings and conclusions are
satisfactory. In particular the Board can take encouragement from the following
findings:

the accounts were submitted on time;

there was no qualification to the auditor's opinion;

final accounts preparation procedures and working papers were good;

assurance can be placed on the financial systems and internal financial controls used hy

the Boarg;

many aspects of a sound corporate governance framework are in place, including an
Annual Governance Statement; and

there are appropriate arrangements in place in respect of standards of conduct and
prevention and detection of fraud and irregularity.

POLICY IMPLICATIONS

This report has been screened for any policy implications in respect of Sustainability,
Strategic Environment Assessment, Anti-Poverty and Equality Impact Assessment and
Risk Management. There are no major issues identified.

CONSULTATIONS

The Bridge Manager and Clerk to the Board have been consulted on the content of this
report.

BACKGROUND PAPERS

KPMG: Tay Road Bridge Joint Board - Annual Report to Members on the 2012/2013
Audit (September 2013).

MARJORY M STEWART
TREASURER 3 SEPTEMBER 2013

TRE 14-2013-EA REP 180913
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TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD
MEMBERS AND OFFICIALS

The Board comprises 12 elected members who are appointed by the three constituent local authorities to serve on
the Board. Dundee City Council nominates 6 members, Angus Council have 1 member and Fife Council nominate
the remaining 5 members. Following the previous Scottish Local Government Elections that were held in May 2013
it was agreed by the Board that Dundee City Council would continue to act as lead authority 1o the Board, and
consequently, the Council are required to appoint officers to serve as oificials of the Board. At the end of financial
year 2012/2013, the Members and Officials of the Board were:

Councillor David Bowes (Chair)
Councillor Will Dawson
Councillor Ken Lynn

Councillor Bill Campbell
Councillor Tom Eerguson
Councillor Fraser Macpiierson

Councillor Bill Connor
Councillor Andy Heer

lﬁl\.flrs Marjory M Stewart FCCA, CPFA, Dundee City Council

Contact details:
Tay Road Bridge Joint Board website: www.tayroadbridge.co.uk

Bridge Manager Engineer Clerk Treasurer
Bridge Office cfo Dundee City Gouncil cfo Dundee Gity Council c/o Dundee Gity Gouncil
Marine Parade Gity Development Dept Corporate Services Dept Corporate Services Dept
Dundee 50 Morth Lindsay Street 21 City Square 50 North Lindsay Street
01382-221881 Dundee Dundee Dundee
jain.mackinnon@tayroad 01382-433711 01382-434202 01382-433555
bridge.co.uk fergus.wilson@ roger.mennie@ marjory.stewan@
dundeecity.gov.uk dundeecity.gov.uk dundeecity.gaov.uk



TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD

Organisational Changes

Following the Scottish Local Autheority Elections on 3 May 2012, the membership of the Beard at June

2012 was that shown below:

Bridge Manager's Report

Position  Name Couneil
Chair Clir David Bowes Dundee City Council
Vice Chair CllIr Margaret Taylor Fife Council
Member  Clir Bill Campbell Dundee City Council
Member  Clir Will Dawson Dundee City Counci!
Member Clir Tom Ferguson Bundee City Council
Member Cllr Ken Lynn Bundee City Council
Member Baillie 1an Borthwick Dundee Gity Council
Member  Cllr Bill Connor Fife Council
Member Clir Andy Heer Fite Council
Member  CHr Brian Thomson Fife Council
"Member  Clir Jim Young Fife Council
Member Clir Sheila Hands Angus Council

Councillor David Bowes was elected Chair of the Board and Councillor Margaret Taylor was elected Vice
Chair of the Board at the Board meeting in June 2012.

The Chair, Councillor David Bowes, has intimated that he will resign from his positicn of Chair and
Member of the Board and a new Chair will be elected and a new Member of the Board will be appointed at
the Board Meeting of June 2013.

In addition to this, Balllie lan Borthwick resigned from the Board in February 2013 and was replaced by
Councillor Fraser Macpherson, Dundee City Council.

The Bridge Manager would like to extend his thanks to the outgoing Chair ¢f the Board for his support and
assistance during his time in post.

Management Arrangements with Scottish Government

During this peried, the main point of contact with the Scottish Government continued to be the Trunk Road
and Bus Operations Team of Transport Scotiand. Meetings have been held on a regular basis between
Board Officers and officers from the Trunk Road and Bus Operations Team to discuss financial maiters
etc.

435
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Contracts

Pier Collision Protection Works

The Bridge Manager and bridge staff have been extensively involved in the construction process for the
Pier Collision Protection Works contract, which was awarded to Volker Stevin in January 2011, primarily '
regarding navigation issues associated with the works. This involved changing the navigation lights on the
existing structure to tie in with the Contractors planned programme of work and where necessary at short
notice when operations were affected by bad weather etc.

The Bridge Manager, in conjunction with the Engineer io the Board, was involved in discussions with
designer Jacobs finalising issues relating to on-going operational and maintenance needs once works
were completed.

Inspeactions to Columns and Piers

The Board's two self propelled maintenance gantries were used to provide access for the Inspections to
Columns and Piers Coniract awarded to Pendrich Lid. [n addition to the gantries the Board provided
safety boat cover using the Board’s safety boat. The gantries and boat were manned by the Boatd's
Maintenance personnel. By providing these services to the Contractor efficiency savings were made,
reducing the overall capital cost of the work.

Dundee Central Waterfront Development

Contract 3 for the demolition and reconstruction of the remaining ramps was awarded to Sir Robert
McAlpine in 2012. The Bridge Manager has been involved throughout the works in planning meetings
involving traffic management affecting bridge users.

To date the bulk of the works have had litile or no effect on bridge users.
SESTRAN Park & Ride Proposal

The Bridge Manager has been in discussions with SESTRAN regarding acquisition of land owned by the
Board at the Fife landfall for use as a Park & Ride facility. Approval has been given by the Board for the
Clerk to enter into negotiations for the sale of the land to SESTRAN.

Traffic

Due to the on-going work to reconfigure the bridge approach spans as part of the Dundee City Waterfront
Development there have been prolonged periods where the traffic counters have been unavailable for use
therefore there has been insufficient data collected to provide meaningful comparison of traffic flows. On
completion of the reconfiguration of the bridge approaches the traffic counters will be reinstated and full
traffic figures collected for fuiure reports.

One or both tanes on the bridge were closed on a number of occasions over the past twelve months. The
table below summarises the reasons and number of occurrences:-

Wind Wind Wind Works Breakdowns | Operational closures
speed > speed > speed > Fuli and Minor | Debris collection efc
BOmph 60mph 45mph Closures | Accidents
Closed Cars No
to all Only Double
Vehicles Deck
buses
0 12 47 2 82 1,111

Over the period there had been no full closures due to winds exceeding 80mph and the number of wind
related restrictions had reduced over this time compared to 2011/2012.
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Staffing Issues

Staff Establishment
There has been no change to the number of permanent posts within the stafi establishment which stands

as follows:-

Administration 5
Operational 15
Mainfenance 14
Cleaner {P/T) A
Total 35

fain Mackinnon

Bridge Manager

Tay Road Bridge Joint Board
16 September 2013
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TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD

TREASURER'S REPORT

Introduction
This report is intended as a commentary on the Tay Road Bridge Joint Board's financial position, as presented
within the Statement of Accounis for the financial year 2012/2013.

Annual Governance Statement (see page 10)

This statement sets out the Board's Corporate Governance arrangements, explaining how the Board conducts
its business, both internally and in its dealings with others. The main components of the system are listed,
together with any significant weaknesses that have been identified and the remedial action taken.

Remuneration Report (see page 12)
This statement sets out the remuneration and accrued pension benefits of the senior employee of the Board
and the policy context, in accordance with Scottish Government regulations.

Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts (see page 15)
This staterment sets out the main financial responsibilities of the Board and the Treasurer.

The Accounting Statements (see pages 16 to 46)

Movement in Reserves Statement;

This statement shows the movement in the year on the different reserves held by the Board, analysed into

'usable reserves' (i.e. those that can be applied to fund expenditure) and 'unusable reserves'.

Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Account:

This statement shows the accounting cost in the year of providing services in accordance with generally

accepted accounting practices. -

Balance Shest:
Shows the value as at the Balance Sheet date of the assets and liabilities recognised by the Board.

Cash Flow Statement:
Shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the Board during the reporting period.

Notes to the Financial Statemenis:

‘These are intended to give the reader further information which is not separately detailed in the financial

statements. They also inciude the Accounting Policies which set out the basis upon which the financial
statements have been prepared and explains the accounting treatment of both general and specific items.

Revenue Expenditure

The Tay Road Bridge Joint Board, at its meeting on 12 December 2011, approved the 2012/2013 Revenue
Budget. The final budget showed a break-even position. The projected General Reserve balance as at 31
March 2013 would be £1,225,591. However, subsequent overspends totalling £65,000 occurred in 2011/2012
(after the budget for 2012/2013 was set) which had the effect that the projected General Reserve balance as
at 31 March 2013 decreased to £1,160,581.

The Board recsived quarterly Revenue Monitoring reports during 2012/2013 in order to keep the members
fully appraised as to the projected revenue outturn position.

The following table reconciles the Revenue Budget approved by the Board on 12 December 2011 {as
adjusted) to the revised budget figures that are included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement shown on page 17. The actual outturn for 2012/2013 was a net overspend against budget of
£19,000 before the application of accounting adjustments and the detailed variance analysis is set out on
page 8.
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Staff Costs (Underspend £40,000)

Mainly reflects posts that have been held vacant during the year. In addition, expenditure on overtime has
been lower than budgeted following a reduction in the level of overtime worked as there were relatively few
contracts requiring bridge maintenance staif.

Property Costs (Underspend £18,000)
Reflects lower expenditure relating to electricity costs due to a new contract being negotiated at the start of
the year. In addition, expenditure on alterations and repairs within the administration building was fower than

anticipated.

Supplies & Services (Overspend £1,000)

There were overspends on de-icing materials due to adverse weather conditions, as well as the engineering
combined insurance premium as a resulf of a requirement for more regular inspections due to recent
modifications to the runway beam and the gantries. These variances were partly offset by the fact that on-
going capital contracts meant a reduction in the amount of bridge maintenance work carried out during the
year which has resulted in lower than anticipated expendiiure on the purchase of equipment and materials,
plant hire and other miscellaneous supplies and services.

Transport Costs (Underspend £3,000)

Reflects minor underspends in a number of budget headings including travel and subsistence, and business
mileage as more training has been brought on-site. Additionally, there have alsc been underspends relating
to fuel costs for the gantries and safety boat as the amount of bridge maintenance work carried out during the
year was reduced.

Third Party Paymentis (Underspend £81,000)

Reflects savings relating to structural inspections which could not be conducted as the gantries have been in
use by a contractor. Further underspends have resulted from the carriageway joints not requiring repairs,
allowances for professional fees relating to the cathodic protection system not being spent as repairs are
required to be completed before this is fully operational, and expenditure on charges for hurnan resource
services being less than anticipated. These variances were partly offset by increased expenditure on principal

"inspections of the gantries as a result of the formal insurance inspections.

Corporate and Demaocratic Core Costs (Underspend £3,000)
Reflects a reduction in external audi fees.

Other Operating Income and Expenditure (Income Surplus £1,000)
Reflects a refund for bank charges.

Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure (Income Surplus £13,000)
Reflects increase in interest received on bank balances due to higher than anticipated average balances due
to large amounts of Capital Grant income.

Non-Specific Grant Income (Income Shortfall £177,000)
Reflects the fact that any unused Revenue Grant (with conditions) is to be held in creditors so that it can be
applied to match expenditure in future years.

General Reserve
There was a break-even position for the financial year 2012/2013. This gives a total General Reserve balance

of £1,160,591 at 31 March 2013.



Capital Expenditure and Financing
During 2012/2013, the Board incurred capital expanditure of £10,490,000 on the following projects:-

£000
Inspection to Columns and Piers 87
Carriageway Resurfacing 5
Gantry 1
lce Detection 13
Pier Collision Protection 10,301
Other Projects _ 83
10.490

Capital expenditure was funded as follows:
000
Capital Grant from the Scottish Government 10,489
Capital Receipts )
10,480

In addition to the above, an asset of £0.36m has been recognised in the Balance Sheet (2011/2012: £2.55m).
This relates o the western off-ramp which had been constructed by Dundee City Council as part of the
Central Waterfront development and subsequently fransferred io the Board. [n addition, £4.942m has been
included within assets under construction at 31 March 2013 for the remaining new on-off ramps.

Control of Revenue and Capital Expenditure

The control of both the revenue and capiial expenditure of the Board is an on-going and substantial exercise
which requires a positive contribution from staff and elected members to ensure that the Board's financial
objectives are achfeved and that financial resources are fully utilised.

Pension Liability (IAS 19) : :

Under 1AS 19 (Employee Benefits) the Board is required to include figures in its Statement of Accounts
relating to the assels, liabilities, income and expenditure of the pension schemes for its employees. It has
been estimated that the Board had a net pension liability of £2,213,000 as at 31 March 2013. The estimated
net pension liability at 31 March 2012 was £2,072,000. A decrease in the real interest rate and changes in the
underlying assumptions used to calculate scheme liabilities have caused an increase in l[iabilities. This was
partly offset by an increase in the value of scheme assets, resuiting in the overall net liability increasing by

£141,000.
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Marjory M Stewart, FCCA, CPFA
Treasurer

Tay Road Bridge Joint Board
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TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD
ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT
Scope of Responsibility

Tay Road Bridge Joint Board is responsible for ensuring that its business is conducted in accordance with the
law and appropriate standards. This is to ensure that public funds and assets at its disposal are safeguarded,
properly accounted for and used economically, efficiently, effectively, and ethically. The Board also has a duty
to make arrangements to secure continuous improvement in the way its functions are carried out.

In discharging these responsibilities elected members and senior officers are responsible for implementing
effective arrangements for governing the Board's affairs and facilitating the effective exercise of its functions,
including arrangements for the management of risk.

To this end the Board has approved and adopted a local Code of Corporate Governance that is consistent
with the principles of the CIPFA/SOLAGE framework Delivering Good Governance in Local Government. This
statement explains how Tay Road Bridge Joint Board delivers good governance and reviews the effectiveness
of these arrangements.

The Board's Governance Framework

The governance framework comprises the systems, processes, cultures and values by which the Board is
directed and controlled. It also describes the way it engages with and accounts to stakeholders. It enables
the Board to monitor the achievement of its strategic objectives and consider whether those objectives have
led 1o the delivery of appropriate, cost-effective services.

The framework reflects the arrangements in place to meet the six supporting principles of effective corporate
governance. These are as follows:

« focusing on the purpose ‘of the Board and on outcomes for the community and creating and
implementing a vision for the local area;

« members and officers working together to achieve a common purpose with clearly defined functions
and roles;

« promoting values for the Board and demonstrating the values of good governance through upholding
high standards of conduct and behaviour;

s+ taking informed and transparent decisions which are subject to effective scrutiny and managing risk;

» developing the capacity and capabilities of members and officers to be effective; and

+ engaging with local people and other stakeholders to ensure robust public accountability.

Within the overall control arrangements the system of internal financial control is intended to ensure that
assets are safeguarded, transactions are authorised and properly recorded, and material errors or
irregularities are either prevented or would be detected within a timely pericd. I is based on a framework of
regular management information, financial regulations, administrative procedures and management
supervision.

The overall control arrangements include:

identifying the Board's objectives in the Service Plan;

monitoring of objectives by the Board and senior officers;

reporting performance regularly to Board meetings;

clearly defined Standing Orders and Schemes of Administration covering Financial Regulations,

Tender Procedures and Delegation of Powers;

« approved Fraud Guidelines which include anti-fraud and corruption strategies, and "whistle-blowing"
arrangements;

» setting targets to measure financial and service performance; and

« formal revenue and capital budgetary control systems and procedures.

* & 9 &

Additionally, in order to support Chief Financial Officers in the fulfilment of their duties and to ensure that local
authority organisations have access to effective financial advice of the highest level, CIPFA's Role of the Chief
Financial Officer has introduced a "comply or explain” requirement in the Annual Statement of Accounts.
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Review of Effectiveness

Members and officers of the Board are committed to the concept of sound governance and the effective
delivery of Board services and take into account comments made by internal and external auditors.

In addition the Board have made a self-assessment of their own arrangements. This involved the completion,
by the Bridge Manager, of a 56-point checklist covering the six supporting principles defined in
CIPFA/SOLACE's Delivering Good Governance in Local Government. This indicated a high level of

compliance.

The Board's internal Audit Service operates in accordance with the CIPFA Code of Practice for Internal Audit
in Local Government in the United Kingdom and reports to the Board. Internal Audit underiakes an annual
programme of work, which is reported to the Board. The internal Auditor provides an independent opinion on
the adequacy and effectiveness of the system of internal control.

The Treasurer complies with the principles set out in CIPFA's Role of the Chief Financial Officer.

Continuous Improvement Agenda

in 2011/2012 the following area was identified by both the Bridge Manager in the self-assessment checklists
completed as part of the Board’s assurance gathering process, and by Internal Audii, where further
improvement could be made:

+ Develop a formal complaints procedure (taking account of updated guidance still to be issued by the
Scottish Ombudsman's Office).

A formal complaints procedure was implemented from 30 September 2012. This can be found on the board's
website at www tayroadbridge.co.uk/board misc.php

During 2012/2013, Internal Audit conducted their programme of audits, including a review of Data Protection
and Freedom of Information arrangements in place at the Board. This identified the following areas where
further improvements could be made:

» Develop a Data Protection Policy; and
e Develop a Freedom of Information Policy.

It is proposed that during 2013/2014 steps are taken to address the items identified in the Continuous
Improvement Agenda to further enhance the Board's governance arrangements.

The annual review demonstrates sufficient evidence that the code's principles of delivering good governance
in local government operated effectively and the Board complies with the Local Code of Corporate

Governance in ali significant respects.

Marjory Stewart FCCA, CPFA lain MaeKinnon

Treasurer Bridge Manager

Tay Road Bridge Joint Board Tay Road Bridge Joint Board
16 September 2013 16 September 2013

11

53



54

TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD
ANNUAL REMUNERATION REPORT

INTRODUCTION

The Board is required to prepare and publish within its Statement of Accounts an annual Remuneration
Report under the Local Authority Accounts (Scotland) Amendment Regulations 2011 {Scotlish Statutory
Instrument No. 2011/64), which came into force on 31 March 2011. The report sets out the remuneration of
the Chair and Vice-Chair and Senior Employees of the Board and accrued pension benefits of the Senior
Employees of the Board. The report also provides information on the number of Board employees {including
Senior Employees) whose total actual remuneration was £50,000 or more, this information being disclosed in
salary bandings of £5,000 above £50,000. The following report has been prepared in accordance with the
aforementioned Regulations and also in accordance with the non-statutory guidance set out in Scottish
Government Finance Circular 8/2011, issued on 13 May 2011.

The Board's External Auditor is required to audit certain parts of the Remuneration Report and give a separate
opinion in his report on the Statement of Accounts as to whether the Remuneration Report has been property
prepared in accordance with the Regulations. Tables 1, 2 and 3 are subject to audit, and the remainder of the
report is subject to review.

REMUNERATION ARRANGEMENTS

Senior Board Members

The remuneration of Councillors is regulated by the Local Governance (Scotland} Act 2004 (Remuneration)
Regulations 2007 (SSI No. 2007/183). The Regulations set out the remuneration payable to Councillors with
the responsibility of a Chair or Vice-Chair of a Joint Board. The Regulations require the remuneration to be
paid by the Council of which the Chair or Vice-Chair is a member.

The Board has an arrangement with each Council who remunerates the Chair and Vic-Chair to reimburse the

" Council for the additional costs of that councillor arising from them being a Chair or Vice-Chair of the Board.

The disclosures made in this report are fimited to the amounts paid to the Council by the Board tor
remuneration and does not reflect the full value of the remuneration that may be paid to the councillor.

The Chair did not receive any remuneration during 2012/2013. (2011/2012: Nil remuneration). The
remiuneration details for the Vice-Chair of Tay Road Bridge Joint Board are setout in Table 1.~

Senior Employees

The salary of Senior Employees is set by reference to national agreements. The salaries of senior employees
of the Board take into account the duties and responsibilities of their posis. The Board is responsible for
agreeing the salaries of senior employees. All Board employees are entitled to participate in Dundee City
Gouncil's Coniract Car Hire Scheme, subject to meeting certain criteria. The Council's Policy & Resources
Committee is responsible for agreeing the terms of the Contract Car Hire Scheme.

For the purposes of the Remuneration Report, the Regulations set out the following criteria for designation as
a Senijor Employee of the Board:

{i) has responsibility for management of the Board to the extent that the person has power to direct or
control the major activities of the Board (including activities involving the expenditure of money),
during the year to which the Report relates, whether solely or collectively with other persons;

{ii) holds a post that is poiitically restricted by reason of section 2(1)(a), (b} or (c) of the Local
Government and Housing Act 1988; or

i) annual remuneration, including any remuneration from a local authority subsidiary body, is £150,000
or more.

The Board has determined that one employee met the criteria for designation as a Senior Employee in
2012/2013, with the employee falling into category (i) above. The remuneration details for the Senior
Employees of the Board are set out in Table 2.

The Regulations also require information to be published on the total number of Board employees (including

Senior Employees) whose total actual remuneration was £50,000 or more. This information is to be disclosed
in salary bandings of £5,000 above £50,000 and is shown in the following table.

12



No of No of
Remuneration Bands Employees Employees
2012/2013 2011/2012
£55,000 - £58,899 1 i
Total 1 1

EXIT PACKAGES
There were no exit packages agreed during 2012/2013 (2011/2012: No exit packages agreed).

ACCRUED PENSION BENEFITS

Pension benefits for Local Government Employees are provided through the Local Government Pension
Scheme (LGPS). Local Government Employees pension benefits are a final salary pension scheme. This
means that pension benefits are based on the final year's pay and the number years that the person has been
a member of the scheme. The scheme’s normatl retirement age for Local Government Employees is 65,

From 1 April 2009 a five tier contribution system was introduced with contributions from scheme members
being based on how much pay falls into each tier. This is designed to give more equality between the cost
and berefits of scheme membership. Prior to 2009, contribution rates were set at 6% for all non-manual
employees. The tiers and members' contribution rates for 2012/2013 remain at the 2008/2010 rates and are
gs follows:

Contribution Contribution
Rate Rate
Whole Time Pay 2012/2013 | Whole Time Pay 2011/2012
On earnings up to and including £19,400 5.5% up to and including £18,000 5.5%
On earnings above £19,400 and up to £23,700 7.25% above £18,000 and up to £22,000 7.25%
On earnings above £23,700 and up to £32 500 8.5% above £22,000 and up to £30,000 8.5%
On earnings above £32,500 and up to £43,300 9.5% above £30,000 and up to £40,000 2.5%
On earnings above £43,300 12% above £40,000 12%

" If a person works part-time their contribution rate is worked out on the whole-time pay rate for the job, with
actual contributions paid on actual pay earned.

There is no automatic entitlement to a lump sum. Members may opt to give up (commute) pension for lump
sum up to the [imit set by the Finance Act 2004. The accrual rate guarantees a pension based on 1/60" of
final pensionable salary and years of pensionable service. Prior to 2009 the accrual rate guaranteed a
pension based on 1/80" and a lump sum based on 3/80™ of final pensionable salary and years of pensionable
service,

Senior Employees
"The accrued pension benefits for Senior Employees are set out in Table 3, together with the pension
contributions made by the Board.

Assumptions and Contextual Information

The value of the accrued pension benefits has been calculated on the basis of the age at which the person will
first become entitled to receive a pension on retirement without reduction on account of its payment at that
age; without exercising any option to commute pension entitlement into a lump sum; and without any
adjustment for the effects of future inflation. The pension figures shown relate to the benefits that the person
has accrued as a consequence of their total Local Government service and not just their current appoiniment.

In considering the accrued pension benefiis figures the following contextual information should be taken into
account:

(N the figures for pension and lump sum are illustrative only in light of the assumptions set out above and
do not necessarily reflect the actual benefits that any individual may receive upon retirement.
(if) the accrued benefits figures are reflective of the pension contributions that both the employer and the

scheme member have made over a period of time. [n 2012/2013, the scheme member contribution
rate for Senior Employees of the Board was 8.5% of pensionable pay. In 2012/2013, the employer
contribution rate was 18% of pensionable pay for Senior Employees.

Marjory M Stewart, FCCA, CPFA
Treasurer

Tay Road Bridge Joint Board

16 September 2013
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TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD

STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS

The Board’s responsibilities
The Board is requirad to:

* make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial aiffairs and to secure that one of its officers
has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs. tn this Board, that officer is the Treasurer;

* manage iis affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of resources and safeguard its assets.

s approve the Audited Statement of Accounts.

The Treasuret’s responsibilities

The Treasurer is responsible for the preparation of the Board's statement of accounts in accordance with
proper practices set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United
Kingdom ('the Code’).

In preparing this statement of accounts, the Treasurer has:

+ selected suitable accounting pelicies and then applied them consistently;

» made judgements and estimates that were reasenable and prudent;

» complied with the Code of Practice.

The Treasurer has also:
+ kept proper accounting records which were up to date;
» taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Statement of Accounts presents a true and fair view of the financial position of the Board at the
accounting date and its income and expenditure for the year ended 31 March 2013. -

Marjory M Stewart, FCCA, CPFA
Treasurer

Tay Road Bridge Joint Board

16 September 2013
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TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD

MOVEMENT IN RESERVES STATEMENT

This siatement shows the movement In the year on the different reserves held by the Board, analysed into ‘usable
reserves’ (i.e. those that can be applied to fund expenditure) and 'unusable reserves.! The Surplus or {Deficit} on the
Provision of Services line shows the true economic cost of providing the Board's services, more details of which are shown
in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. These are different from the statutory amounts required to be
charged to the General Reserve Balance. The Net increase / (Decrease)} before Transfers to Earmarked Reserves line
shows the statuiory General Reserve balance before any discretionary transfers to or from earmarked reserves
undertaken by the Board.

Capital
General Grants Total Total
Fund Unapplied Usable Unusable Board
Balance Account Reserves [Reserves Heserves
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Balance at 31 March 2011 (1,161) (2,53 (3,700) {50,512) (54,212)
Movement in Reserves during
2011/2012
Surplus or (deficit) on provision of
services (9,940) - (9,940) - (9,240)
Other Comprehensive Expenditure
and Income - - - 355 355
Total Comprehensive Expenditure and
Income (9,940) - {9,940) 355 (9,585)
Adjustments between accounting basis : ‘
& funding basis under regulations (note 5) 9,940 {2,681} 7,259 {7,259) -
Met {(increase) /Decrease before
Transfers to Earmarked Reserves - (2,681) {2,681) (6,904) (9,585)
Transfers to / {from) Earmarked Reserves - - - - -
(Increase) / Decrease in 2011/2012 - (2,681) (2,681) (6,904} (9,585)
Balance at 31 March 2012 carried
forward (1,161) (5,220} (6,381) (57,416) (63,797)
Movement in Reserves during
2012/2013
Surplus or {deficit) on provision of
services (9,539} - (9,539) - (9,539)
Other Comprehensive Expenditure and
Income - - - 76 76
Total Comprehensive Expenditure and
Income (9,539) - (9,539) 76 (9,463)
Adjustmer{ts between accounting basis &
funding basls under reguiations (note §) 9,539 4,189 13,728 {13,728) -
Net (Increase) / Decrease before
Transfers to Earmarked Reserves - 4,188 4,189 (13,652) (9,463)
Transfers to / {from) Earmarked Reserves - - - - -
(Increase) / Decrease in Year . 4,189 4,189 (13,652) (9,463)
Balance at 31 March 2013 carried
farward (1,161) {1,031} (2,192) (71,068) (73,260)
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TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BEOARD

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT

This statement shows the accouniing cost in the year of providing services in accordance with generally accepted

accounting practices.

201172012
Gross Gross Net
Expenditure Income Expenditure
/ {income)
£000 £000 £000
1,078 - 1,078
42 - 42
275 - 275
33 - 38
141 - 141
1,453 - 1,453
22 - 22
3,049 - 3,049
- (3) (3}
1 {97} (96}
- (12,890) {12,890)
3,050  (12,990) (9,940)
355 - 355
355 - 355
3,405  (12,990) {9,585)

2012/2013
Budgeted
Net Gross Gross Net
Expenditure Expenditure Income  Expenditure
{unaudited) /{lncome)
£000 £000 £000 £000

Expenditure
Staff Costs 1,158 1,119 - 1,118
Property Costs 69 51 - 51
Supplies and Services 320 321 - 321
Transport Costs 38 35 . 35
Third Party Payments 144 63 - 63
Depreciation & Impairment 1,669 1,559 1,559
Corporate and Democratic
Core 24 21 - 21
Cost Of Services 3,313 3,168 - 3,169
Other Operating Income &
Expenditure (note 6) 96 21 (116) 95
Financing and Investment :
Income and Expenditure 12 31 (32) (1
(note 7}
Non-Specific Grant Income
(note 8) (12,979) - (12,802) (12,802}
(Surplus) or Deficit on
Provision of Services {9,558) 3,411 {12,950} (9,539)
(note 14)
(Surplus) or deficit on 4 4 i 4
revaluation of fixed assets
Actuarial (Gains) / Losses
on Pension Assets / 72 72 - 72
Liabilities
Other Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure 76 76 j 76
Total ~Comprehensive (9,482) 3487  (12,950)  (9,463)

Income and Expenditure

17
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TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD

BALANCE SHEET

The Balance Sheet shows the value as at the Bajance Sheet date of the assels and liabilities recognised by the Board.
The net assets of the Board (assets less liabilities) are maiched by the reserves held by the Board. Reserves are reporied
in two categories. The first category is usable reserves, i.e. those that the Board may use io provide services, subject to
the need to maintain a prudent level of reserves and any statutory limitations on their use (for example the Capital
Receipts Reserve that may only be used to fund capital expenditure). The second category is unusable reserves i.e.
those that the Board is not able to use to provide services. This category includes reserves that hold unrealised gains and
fosses (for example the Revaluation Reserve), where amounts would only become available to provide services if the
assets ave sold: and reserves that hold tming differences shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement line

‘Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under regulations’.

31 March
2012
£000

59,368
85

59,453

47
581
8,165

8,783

Property, Plant & Equipment
Investment Property
Total Long Term Assets

Inventories
Short Term Gebtors
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Total Current Assets

(2,367)  Short Term Creditors -

{2,367)

Total Current Liabilities

{(2,072)  Net Pension Liabilities

(2,072)

63,797

6,381

57,416
63,797

Total l.ong Term Liabilities
Net Assets
Usable reserves

Unusable Reserves
Total Reserves

31 March
Note 2013
£000
21 73,175
20 g2
73,237
23 47
24 35
13 3,404
3,486
‘25 (1,250)
{1,250)
(2,213)
(2,213)
73,260
g 2,192
10 71,068
73,260
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Treasurer
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TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

The Cash Flow Statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the Board during the reporting period. The
statement shows how the Board generates and uses cash and cash equivalents by cfassifying cash flows as operating,
investing and financing activities. The amount of net cash flows arising from operating activities is a key indicator of the
extent to which the operations of the Board are funded by way of grant income or from the recipients of services provided
by the Board. Investing activities represent the extent io which cash outflows have been made for resources which are
intended 1o contribute to the Board's future service delivery. Cash flows arising from financing activities are useful in
predicting claims on future cash flows by providers of capital {i.e. borrowing} to the Board.

2011/2012 2072/2013
£000 £0600

(9,940) Net (surplus) or deficit on the provision of services {9,539)
Adjust net surplus or deficit on the provision of services for non

(954} cash movemenis {3,037)
Adjust for items included in the net surplus or deficit on the

11,273 provision of services that are investing and financing activities 11,203

379 Net cash flows from Operating Activities {1,373)

{4,445) Investing Activities {note 11) 6,150

(13)_ Financing Activities (note 12) (26)

(4,079} Net (Increase) or Decrease in cash and cash equivalents 4,751

4,076 Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the reporting peried 8,155
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting period

8,155 (note 13) . . 3,404

19
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TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
A General Principles

The Statement of Accounts summarises the Board's transactions for the 2012/2013 financial year and its position
at the year-end of 31 March 2013. The Board is required to prepare an annual Statement of Accounts by the Local
Authority Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 1985. Section 12 of the Local Government in Scolland Act 2003
requires that they be prepared in accordance with proper accounting practices. These practices primarily comprise
the Code of Practice on Local Authority Acceunting in the United Kingdom 2012/2013 and the Service Reporting
Code of Practice 2012/2013, suppotied by International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). The accounting
convention adopted in the Statement of Accounts is principally historical cost, madified by the revaluation of certain
categories of non-current assets.

B Accruals of Income and Expenditure

Activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place, not simply when cash payments are made or received. In
particular:

. Revenue from the sale of goods is racognised when the Board transfers the significant risks and rewards
of awnership to the purchaser and it is probable that economic benefits or service notential associated with
the transaction will flow to the Board.

. Revenue from the provision of services is recognised when the Board can measure religbly the
percentage of completion of the transaction and it is probable that economic benefits or service potential
associated with the transaction will flow to the Board.

. Supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed — where there is a gap between the date
supplies are received and their consumption, they are carried as inventories on the Balance Sheet.

. Expenses in relation to services received (including those rendered by the Board's employees) are
recorded as expenditure when the services are received, rather than when payments are made.

. Where revenue and expenditure have been recognised but cash has not been received or paid, a debtor
or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the Balance Sheet. Where there is evidence that debts
are unlikely to be setiled, the balance of debtors is written down and a charge magde to revenue for the
income that might not be cellected.

c Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions repayable without penalty on notice of
not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents comprise short term lending that is repayable on demand or within 3
months of the Balance Sheet date and that is readily convertible to known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of
change in value. In the Gash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts that
are repayable on demand and form an integra! part of the Board's cash management.

D Changes in Accounting Policies and Estimates and Errors

Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper accounting practices or when the change
provides more reliable or relevant information about the effect of transactions, other events and conditions on the
Board's financia! position or financial performance. Where a change is made, it is applied retrospectively by
adjusting opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period as if the new policy had always been
applied. Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for prospectively, i.e. in the current and future years
affected by the change. Material errors discovered in prior period figures are corrected retraspectively by amending
opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period.
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E Charges to Revenue for Non-Current Assets

The Cornprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is debited with the following amounis to record the cost of
holding fixed assets during the year:

. depreciation aitributable to the asseis used by the relevant service

. revaluation and impairment losses on assets used by the service where there are no accumulated gains in
the Revaluation Reserve against which the losses can be written off

The Board is not required to apply revenue grant receipis to fund depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses.
Depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses are therefore reversed by way of an adjusting transaction with the
Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

F Employee Benefits

Benefits Payable During Employment
Short-term employee benefits {those that fall due wholly within 12 months of the year-end), such as wages and

salarles, paid annual leave and paid sick leave, bonuses and non-monetary benefits (e.g. cars) for cuirent
employees, are recognised as an expense in the year in which employees render service to the Board. An
accrual is made against Staff Costs in the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services for the cost of holiday
entittements and other forms of leave earned by employees but not taken before the year-end and which
ermnployees can carry forward into the next financial year. The accrual is made at the remuneration rates applicable
in the following financial year. Any accrual made is required under statute to be reversed out of the General
Reserve by a credit to the Accumulating Compensated Absences Adjustment Account in the Movement in
Beserves Statement.

Termination Benefits -

Termination benetits are amounts payable as a result of a decision by the Board to terminate an employee's
employment before the normal retirement date or an employee’s decision to accept voluntary redundancy and are
charged on an accruals basis to the Non Distributed Costs line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Account when the Board is demonstrably committed to either terminating the employment of an employee or group
of employees or making an offer to encourage voluniary redundancy. Where termination benefits involve the
enhancement of pensions, statutory provisions require the General Reserve balance to be charged with the
amount payable by the Board to the pension fund or pensioner in the year, not the amount calculated according to
the relevant accounting-standards. In the Movement in Reserves Statement, appropriations are required to and
from the Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for termination benefits retated 1o pensions
enhancements and replace them with debits for the cash paid to the pension fund and pensioners and any such
amounts payable but unpaid at the year-end.

Post Employment Benefits

Employees of the Board are members of a separate pension scheme being the Local Government Superannuation
Scheme (Tayside Superannuation Fund), a defined benefits scheme which is administered by Dundee City
Council. The scheme provides defined benefits to members (retirement lump sums and pensions), earned as
employees worked for the Board.

The Locat Government Pension Scheme is accounted for as a defined benefits scheme:

' The liabiliies of the Tayside Superannuation Fund aitributable to the Board are included in the Balance
Sheet on an actuarial basis using the projected unit method —~ i.e. an assessment of the future paymenis
that will be made in relation to retirement benefits earned to date by employees, based on assumptions
about mertality rates, employee turnover rates, ete, and projections of earnings for current employess.

. Liabilities are discounted to their value at current prices, using a discount rate based on the indicative rate
of return on high quality corporate bond, iBoxx AA rated over 15 year corporate bond index.

. The assets of the Tayside Superannuation Fund attributable to the Board are included in the Balance
Sheet at their fair value:

¢ quoied securities — current bid price
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o unquoted securities — professional estimate
o unitised securities — current bid price
o property — market value.
. The change In the net pensions liability is analysed into seven components:

o current service cost — the increase in liabilitles as result of years of service earned this year -
allocated in the Comprehensive income and Expenditure Statement to Staff Costs

o past service cost ~ the increase in liabilities arising from current year decisions whose effect
relates to years of service earned in earlier years — debited to the Surplus/eficit on the Provision
of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of Non Distributed
Costs

o interest cost — the expected increase in the present value of liabilities during the year as they
move one year closer to being paid — debited to the Financing and Investment Income and
Expenditure ling in the Comprehensive income and Expenditure Statement

o expected return on assets — the annual investment retum on the fund assets attributable to the
Board, based on an average of the expected long-term return — credited to the Financing and
investment income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement

o gains/losses on setflements and curtailments — the result of actions to relieve the Board of
liabilities or events that reduce the expected future service or accrual of benefits of employees —
debitedfcredited to the Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement as part of Non Distributed Costs

o actuarial gains and losses — changes in the net pensions fiability that arise because events have
not co-incided with assumptions made at the last actuarial valuation or because the actuaries -
have updated their assumptions — debited to the Pensions Reserve

o contributions paid to the Tayside Superannuation Fund — cash paid as emplayer's contributions
1o the pension fund in settlement of liabilities; not accounted for as an expense.

In relation to retirement benefits, statutory provisions require the General Reserve balance to be charged with the
amount payable by the Board to the pension fund or directly to pensioners in the year, not the amount calculated
according to the relevant accounting standards, In the Movement in Reserves Statemnent, this means that there
are appropriations to and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for retirement
benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid to the pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts
payable but unpaid at the year-end. The negative balance that arises on the Pensions Reserve thereby measures
the beneficial impact on the General Reserve of being required to account for retirement benefits on the basis of
cash flows rather than as benefits are earned by employees.

Discretionary Benefits

The Board also has resiricted powers to make discretionary awards of retirement benefits in the event of early
retirements. Any liabllities estimated to arise as a result of an award te any member of staff are accrued in the year
of the decision to make the award and accounted for using the same policies as are applied to the Local
Governmant Pension Scheme.

G Events After the Reporting Period

Events after the reporting period are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that occur between the end
of the reporting period and the date when the Staternent of Accounts is authorised for issue. Two types of events
can be identified:

. those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period — the Statement of
Accounts is adjusted to reflect such events

. those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period — the Statement of Accounts is
not adjusted to reflect such events, but where a category of events would have a material effect disclosure
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is made in the notes of the nature of the events and their estimated financial effect

Events taking place after the date of authorisation for issue are not reflected in the Statement of Accounts.

H Government Grants and Contributions

Whether paid on account, by instalments or in arears, government grants and third parly contributiocns and
donations are recognised as due to the Board when there is reasonable assurance that:

. the Board will cemply with the conditions attached to the payments, and
. the grants or contributions will be received

Amounis recognised as due to the Board are not credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Account
until conditions attaching to the grant or contribution have been satisfied. Conditions are stipufations that specify
that the future economic benefits or service potential embodied in the asset acguired using the grant or contribution
are required o ba consumed by the recipient as specified or future economic benefits or service potential must be
returned to the transferor. Monies advanced as granis and coniributions for which conditions have not been
satisfied are carried in the Balance Sheet as creditors. When conditions are satisfied, the grant or contribution is
credited to the relevant line (Non-Specific Grant Income) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Staternent. Where capital grants are crediied to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, they are
reversed oui of the General Reserve Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. Where the grant has yet to
be used to finance capital expenditure, it is posted to the Capital Grants Unapplied Account. Where it has been
applied, it is posted to the Capital Adjustment Account. Amounts in the Capital Grants Unapplied Account are
transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account once they have been applied.

I Heritage Assets

The Board's Heritage Assets are held in support of the primary objective of increasing knowledge, understanding
and appreciation of the history of the Tay Road Bridge and the surrounding area. Heritage assets are recognised
and measured (including the treatment of revaluation gains and losses) in accordance with the Board's accounting
policies on property, plant and equipment. However, some of the measurement rules are relaxed in relation to
heritage assets as detailed below. The accounting policies in relation to heritage assets are also presented below.

The Board's heritage assels are accounted for as follows:

Heritage Assets Not Recegnised in the Balance Sheet

The Board holds heritage assets which, in light of the relaxation of measurement rules, are not recognised In the
balance shieet. The Board considers that, due to the unique nature of the assets held and the lack of comparable
velues, the cost of obtaining valuations would be disproportionate in relation to the benefits to the users of the
Board's financial statements. As a result, fair value information is unavailable and cost information Is also
unknown. These assets are therefore not recognised in the balance sheet, however, detailed information regarding
them is held on relevant databases.

Heritage Assets - Impairments

The carrying amounts of heritage assets are reviewed where there is evidence of impairment, for example where
an item has suffered physical deterioration or breakage. Any impairment is recognised and measured in
accordance with the Board's general policles on Impairment.

J Inventories

inventories are included in the Balance Sheet at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of inventories
is assigned using the First-in-First-out (FIFO) costing formula.

K Investment Properties

Investment properties are those that are used solely {0 earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation. The definition is
not met if the properly is used in any way to facilitate the delivery of services or production of goods or is held for
sale. Investment properties are measured initially at cost and subseguently at fair value, based on the amount at
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which the asset could be exchanged between knowledgeable parties at arm’s length. Properties are not
depreciated but are re-valued annually according to market conditions at the year-end. Gains and losses on
revaluation are posted to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure fine in the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement. The same treatment is applied to gains and losses on disposal. Rentals received in
relation to investment properties are credited to the Financing and Invesiment Income line and result in a gain for
the General Reserve Balance. However, revaluation and disposal gains and losses are not permitted by statulory
arrangements to have an impact on the Balance. The gains and losses are therefore reversed out of the General
Reserve Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement and posted to the Capital Adjustment Account.

L Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of the property, plant or equipment from the lessor to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases. Where a fease covers both land and buildings, the land and buildings elements are
considered separately for classification. Arrangements that do not have the legal status of a lease but convey a
right to use an asset in return for payment are accounted for under this policy where fulfitment of the arrangement
is dependent on the use of specific assets.

The Board as Lessee

Finance Leases

Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases are recognised on the Balance Sheet at the
commencement of the lease together with an equivalent deferred liability for the obligation to pay the lessor.
Where applicable, any initial direct costs of the Board are added to the carrying amount of the asset. Any
premiums paid on entry into a lease are applied to writing down the lease liability. Contingent rents are charged as
expenses in the years in which they are incurred.

Lease payments are apportioned between:

» a charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property, plant or equipment — applied to write down the
lease liability, and

+ a finance charge (debited io the Financing and Invesiment Income and Expenditure line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement)

Property, Plant and Equipment recognised under finance leases is accounted for using the relevant accounting
policies applied generally to such assets e.g. depreciation, revaluation and impairment review.

Qperating Leases

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as an
expense. Charges are made on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease, even if this does not match the
pattern of payments {e.g. if there is a rent-free period at the commencement of the lease).

The Board as Lessor

Finance Leases

Where the Board grants a finance lease over a property or an item of plant or equipment, the relevant asset is
written out of the Balance Sheet as a disposal. At the commencement of the lease, the carrying amount of the
asset in the Balance Sheet (whether Property, Plant and Equipment or Assets Held for Sale) is written off to the
Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of the gain or
foss on dispusal. A gain, representing the Board's net invesiment In the lease, is credited to the same line in the
Gomprehensive Income and Expendilure Statement also as part of the gain or loss on disposal (i.e. netted off
against the carrying value of the asset at the time of disposal), matched by a lease asset in the Balance Sheet.

Lease rentals receivable are apportioned between:

. a charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property — applied to write down the lease liability
{together with any premiums received), and
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. finance income (credited fo the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement)

Operating Leases

Where the Board grants an operating lease over a property or an item of plant or equipment, the asset is retained
in the Balance Sheet as a non-current asset and coniinues to be subject to depreciation, revaluation and
impairment review, in accordance with tha relevant accounting policies. Rental income is credited fo the
appropriate service line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Crediis are made on a straight-
line basis over the life of the lease, even if this does not match the pattern of payments (e.g., there is a premium
paid at the commencement of the lease). Any initfal direct cosis incurred in negotiating and arranging the lease are
added to the carrying amount of the relevant asset and charged as an expense over the lease term on the same
basis as rental income.

M Property, Plant and Equipment

Assets that have physical substance and are held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, for
rental to others of for administrative purposes and that are expected to be used during more than one financial year
are classified as Property, Plant and Equipment.

Recognition
Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of Property, Plant and Equipment is capitalised on an

accruals basis, provided that it is probable that the future economic benefits or service potential associated with the
item will flow to the Board and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. Expenditure that maintains but does
not add to an assef's potential to deliver future economic benefits or service potential (i.e. repairs and
rﬁaintenance) is charged as an expense when it is incurred.

Measurement
Assets are initially measured at cost, comprising:

. the purchase price

. any costs attributable to bringing the assat to the location and condition necessary for.it to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by management

The Board does not capitalise borrowing costs incurred whilst assets are under construction. The cost of assets
acquired other than by purchase is deemed to be its fair value, unless the acquisition will not increase the cash
flows of the Board. In the latter case, the cost of the acquisition is the carrying amount of the asset given up by the
Board. Donated assets are measured initiafly at fair value. The difference between fair value and any
consideration paid is credited to the Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income line of the Comprehensive income
and Expenditure Statement, unless the donation has been made conditionally. Until conditions are safisfied, the
gain is held in the Donated Asseis Account. Where gains are credited to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement, they are reversed out of the General Reserve Balance to the Capital Adjustment Account
in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

Assets are then carried in the Balance Sheet using the following measurement bases:
. infrastructure — depreciated hisiorical cost

. all other assets — fair value, determined as the amount that would be paid for the asset in its existing use
(existing use value ~ ELUV)

Where there is no market-based evidence of fair value because of the specialist nature of an asset, depreciated
replacement cost is used as an estimate of fair value. Assets included in the Balance Sheet at {air value are re-
valued sufficiently regularly to ensure that their carrying amount is not materially different from their fair value at the
year-gnd, but as a minimum every five years. Increases in valuations are matched by credits to the Revaluation
Reserve to recognise unrealised gains. Exceptionally, gains might be credited to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement where they arise from the reversal of a revaluation or impairment loss previously charged to
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a service. Where decreases in value are identitied, the revaluation loss is accounted for by:

. where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve, the carying
amount of the asset is writien down against that balance {up to the amount of the accumulated gains)

. where there is no balance in the Revalvation Reserve or insufficient batance, the carying amount of the
asset is writlen down against the relevant line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement

The Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since 1 April 2007 only, the date of its formal
implermentation. Gains arising before that date have been consolidated into the Capital Adjustment Account.

Impairment
Assets are assessed at each year-end as 1o whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. Where

indications exist and any possible differences are estimated to be material, the recoverable amount of the asset is
sstimated and, where this is less than the carrying amount of the asset, an impairment loss is recognised for the
shorifall. Where impairment losses are identified, they are accounted for by:

. where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve, the carrying
amount of the asset is written down against that balance {up fo the amount of the accumulated gains)

. where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or insufficient balance, the carrying amaount of the
asset is wrilten down against the relevant line(s} in the Comprehensive income and Expenditure
Statement

Where an impairment loss is reversed subsequently, the reversal is credited to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement, up to the amount of the original loss, adjusted for depreciation that wouid have been
charged if the loss had not been recognised.

Disposals
When it becomes probable that the carrying amount of an asset will be recovered principally through a saie

transaction rather than through its continuing use, it is reclassified as an Asset Held for Sale. The asset Is re-
valued immediately befare reclassification and then carried at the lower of this amount and fair value less costs to
sell. Where there is a subsequent decrease to fair value fess costs to sell, the loss is posted to the Other Operating
Expenditure ling in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Gains in fair value are recognised only
up to the amount of any previously recognised losses. Depreciation is not charged on Assets Held for Sale.
Assets that are to be abandoned or scrapped are not reclassified as Assets Held for Sale.

When an asset is disposed of or decommissioned, the carrying amount of the asset in the Balance Sheet {whether
Property, Plant and Equipment or Assets Held for Sale) is written off to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the
Comprehensive income and Expenditure Statement as part of the gain or loss on disposal. Receipts from
disposals (if any) are credited to the same line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement also as
part of the gain or loss on disposal {i.e. nelted off against the carrying value of the assst at the time of disposal).
Any revaluation gains accumulated for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve are transferred to the Capital
Adjustment Account. Amounts received for disposals are categorised as capital receipts. The balance of receipts
is required to be credited to the Gapital Receipts Reserve, and can then only be used for new capital invesiment or
set aside to reduce the Board's underlying need to horrow (the capital financing requirement). Receipts are
appropriated fo the Reserve from the General Reserve in the Movement in Reserves Statement. Amounts are
appropriated to the Capital Adjusiment Account from the General Reserve in the Movement in Reserves
Statement.

Depreciation
Depreciation is provided for on all Properly, Plant and Equipment assets by the systematic allocation of their

depreciable amounts over their useful fives. An exception is made for assets without a determinable finite useful
life (i.e. freehold land) and assets that are not yet available for use (i.e., assets under construction).
Deprecation is calculated on the following bases:

. buildings — straight-line allocation over the useful life of the property as estimated by the valuer,

. vehicles, plant and equipment — straight line allocation over between 3 and 10 years.
26



. infrastructure - straight-line allocation over between 10 and 85 years.

Where an item of Property, Plant and Equipment asset has major components whose cost is significant in relation
to the total cost of the item, the components are depreciated separately. Revaluation gains are also depreciated,
with an amount equal fo the difference between current value depreciation charged on assets and the depreciation
that would have baen chargeable based on their historicat cost being transferred each year from the Revaluation
Reserve to the Capital Adjustment Account.

N Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Provisions

Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the Board a legal or constructive obligation that
probably requires seitlement by a transfer of economic benefits or setvice potential, and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation. For example, the Board may be involved in a court case that could
gventually result in the making of a settiement or the payment of compensation. Provisions are charged as an
expense to the appropriate line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the year that the
Board becomes aware of the obligation, and measured at the best estimate at the Balance Sheet date of the
expenditure required to settle the obligation, taking into account relevant risks and uncertainties. When payments
are eventually made, they are charged to the provision carried in the Balance Sheet. Estimaied settlements are
reviewed at the end of each financial year — where it becomes less than probable that a transfer of economic
benefits will now be reguired (or a lower seftlement than anticipated is made), the provision is reversed and
credited back to the relevant heading. Where some or all of the payment required te settle a provision is expected
to be recovered from another party (e.g. from an insurance claim), this is only recognised as income for the
relevant service if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if the Board settles the obligation.

Contingent Liabilities .
A contingent fiability arises where an event has taken place that gives the Board a possible obligation whose

existence will only be confirmed by the ocourrence or otherwise of uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Board. Contingent liabilities also arise in circumstances where a provision would otherwise be made
but either it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required or the amount of the obligation cannot be
measured reliably. Contingent liabiiities are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but are disclosed in a note to the
accounts.

Contingent Assets . .
A contingent asset arises where an event hag {aken place that gives the Board a possible asset whose existence

will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain fuiure events not wholly within the control of the
Board. Contingent asssts are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but are disclosed in a note to the accounts
where it is probable that there will be an inflow of economic benefits or service potential.

0 Reserves

Reserves are created by appropriating amounts out of the General Reserve in the Movement in Reserves
Statement. When expenditure to be financed from a reserve is incurred, it is charged to the appropriate heading in
that year to count against the Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement. The reserve is then appropriated back into the General Reserve Balance in the Movement
in Reserves Statement so that there s no net charge against grant receipts for the expenditure. Ceriain reserves
are kept to manage the accounting processes for non-current assets, financial instruments and retirement benefits
and these reserves do not represent usable resources for the Board. Further information on the Board's reserves
is contained in notes 9 and 10.

P VAT

VAT payable is included as an expense only to the extent that it is not recoverable from Her Majesty's Revenue
and Customs. VAT receivable is excluded from income.
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ACCOUNTING STANDARDS THAT HAVE BEEN ISSUED BUT HAVE NOT YET BEEN ADOPTED

Amendments to |AS 19 — Emplovee Benefits: issued June 2011, effective for the 2013/2014 financial vear

The International Accounting Standards Board published a final version of the revised IAS 19 standard, which will
apply for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013.
In summary, the main changes that affect the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement are:

« Removal of the expected return on assets, 1o be replaced by a net interest cost comprising interest income on
assets and interest expense on the liabilities, which are both calculated with reference to the discount rate; and

« Some labelling changes to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement charge e.g. “Service Gost"
now includes what was previously described as the "Current Service Cost” plus the "Past Service Cost” plus
any "Curtaiiments” plus any “Settlements”.

+ Administration expenses are now accounted for within the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
charge. Previously, this was a deduction to the actual and expected return on assets.

The changes set out above are effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013 so do not

affect the disclosures for 2012/2013. However, the following table cutlines the disclosure of the impact of the
revised [AS 19 standard had it been applied in 2012/2013.

The amounts recognised in the Comprehensive Income and

Expenditure Statement if the revised IAS 19 Standard was 2012/2013
adopted are: £000
Service Cost 207
Net Interest on the Defined Liability (Asset) 92
Administration Expenses 3
Total ' 302

The Actual Return on Scheme Assets would be £935,000 had the revised standard applied during this period.
CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS [N APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES

In applying the accounting policies set out in Note 1, the Board has had to make certain judgements ahbout future
events. The key judgement made in the Statement of Accounts relates to the high degree of uncertainty about
future levels of funding for public bodies. The Board has determined that this uncertainty is not sufficient to provide
an indication that the assets of the Board might be impaired as a result of a need lo reduce levels of service
provision.

ASSUMPTIONS MADE ABOUT THE FUTURE AND OTHER MAJOR SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

The Statement of Accounts contains estimated figures that are based on assumptions made by the Board about
the future or that are otherwise uncertain. Estimates are made taking into account historical experience, current
trends and other relevant factors. However, because balances cannot be determined with certainty, actual results
could be materially different from the assumptions and estimates.

The items In the Board's Balance Sheet at 31 March 2013 for which there is a significant risk of material adjustment
in the forthcoming financial year are as follows:
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Uncertainties

Effect if Actual Results Differ from
Assurnptions

Property, Plant and Equipment

Assets are depreciated over useful
lives that are dependent on
assumptions about the [evel of
repairs and maintenance that will be
incurred in relation to individual
asseis. The current economic
climate meakes it uncertain that the
Board will be able to sustain its
current spending on repairs and
maintenance, bringing into doubt the
useful lives assigned o assets.

If the useful life of assets is
reduced, depreciation increases
and the carrying amount of the
assets falls.

It is estimated that the annual
depreciation charge for property,
plant and equipment would
increase by £14,000 for every year
that useful lives had fo be reduced.

Pensions L.iability

Estimation of the net liability to pay
pensions depends on a number of
complex judgements relating fo the
discount rate used, the rate at which
salaries are projected to increase,
changes in retirement ages, mortality
rates and expected returns on pension
fund assets. A firm of consulting
actuaries is engaged to provide the
Board with expert advice about the
assumptions to be applied.

The effects on the net pensions
liability of changes in individual
assumptions can be measured.
For instance, a 0.1% increase in
the discount rate assumption would
result in a decrease in the pension
liability of £156,000.

However, the assumptions interact
in complex ways. During
2012/2013, the Board's actuaries
advised that the net pensions
liability had increased by £598,000
as a result of estimates being
corrected as a result of experience
and increased by £670,000
attributable to updating of the
assumptions.

This list does not include any assets and liabilities that have are carried ai fair value based on a recently observed

market price.
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5. MOVEMENT IN RESERVES STATEMENT - ADJUSTMENTS BETWEEN ACCOUNTING BASIS AND FUNDING
BASIS UNDER REGULATIONS

This note details the adjustments that are made to the total comprehensive income and expenditure recognised by
the Board in the year in accordance with proper accounting practice to the resources that are specified by statutory
provisions as being available to the Board to meet future capital and revenue expenditure.

2012/2013 General Capital Grants Movement in
Fund Unapplied Unusable Total
Balance Account Reserves  2012/2013
£000 £000 £000 £000

Adjustments involving the Capital Adjustment Account:

Reversal of items debited or credited to the Comprehensjve
Income and Expenditure Stajement:

Charges for depreciation and impairment of non current (1,559) - 1,558 -
assels

Movements in the fair value of Investment Properties (23) - 23 -
Capitai grants and contributions that have been applied to 11,278 4,189 (15,467) -

capital financing

Amounts of non current assets written off on disposal or sals {97) - 97 -
as part of the gain/loss on disposal 1o the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement

Adjustments involving the Capital Receipts Reserve:

Transfer of sale proceeds credited as part of the gainfioss - - 1 1
on disposal to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

Statement

Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance new capital N - - (1)
expenditure

Adjustments involving the Pensions Reserve:

Reversal of items relating to post employment benefits (214) - 214 -
debited or credited to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision

of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

Statement {see note 16)

Employer's pensions contributions and direct payments to 145 - (145) -
pensioners payable in the year

Adjustment involving the Accumulating Compensated
Absences Adjustment Account

Amount by which eificer remuneration charged to the 10 - (10} -
Cormprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement on an

accruals basis is different frem remuneration chargeable in

the year in accordance with statutory requirements

Total Adjustments 9,539 4,189 (13,728) -
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General
Fund
Balance
£000

2011/2012

Capital Grants Movement in

Unapplied
Account
2000

Unusable
Reserves
£000

Total
2011/2012
£000

Adjustments involving the Capital Adjustment Account:

Reversal of items debited or credited to the Comprehengive
Incame and Expenditure Statement:

Charges for depreciation and impairment of non current (1,453}

asseis

1,453

Movements in the fair value of Investment Properties 12

(12)

Capital grants and contributions that have been applied to 8,668

capital financing

(8,668)

Amounts of non current assets writien off on disposal or sale 8
as part of the gainfloss on disposal to the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement

Adjustments involving the Capital Receipls Reserve:

Transfer of sale proceeds credited as part of the gain/foss -
on disposal to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement

Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance new capital (3}
expenditure

(3}

Adjustment invoiving the Capital Grants Unapplied
Account

Reversal of unapptied capital grants and contributions 2,681
credited {0 the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement

(2.681)

Adjustments involving the Pensions Reserve:

Reversal of items relating to post employment benefits (118)
debited or credited to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision

of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

Statement (see note 16)

118

Employer's pensions contributions and direct payments to 147
pensioners payable in the year

(147)

Adjustment involving the Accumulating Compensated
Absences Adjustment Account

Amount by which officer remuneration charged to the {2)
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement on an

accruals basis is different from remuneration chargeable in

the year in accordance with statutary requirements

Total Adjustments 9,940

(2,681)

(7,259)
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6. COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT - OTHER OPERATING EXPENDITURE

2011/2012 2012/2013
£000 £000
{3) (Gains) / Losses on the disposal of nan current assets 95
(3) Total 95

7. COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT - FINANCING AND INVESTMENT INCOME
AND EXPENDITURE

2011/2012 2012/2013
£000 £000
(49) Pensions interest cost and expected return on pensions assets 7
(26) Interest receivable and similar income (22)
{12) Changes in the fair value of investment properties 23
(9) Income & Expenditure on investment properties (9)
(96) Total (nm

8. COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT - NON SPECIFIC GRANT INCOME

2011/2012 2012/2013
£000 £000
(1,540)  Non-ring fenced government grants (1,524}

{11,350)  Capital grants and contributions {11,278}
{12,890} Total {12,802)

9. BALANCE SHEET - USABLE RESERVES
Movemenis in the Authority’s usable reserves are detailed in the Movement in Reserves Statement and note 5.

10. BALANCE SHEET - UNUSABLE RESERVES

31 March 31 March
2012 2013
£000 £000

711 Revaluation Reserve 707
58,789  Capital Adjustment Account 72,576
(2,072) Pensions Reserve (2,213)

(12)  Accumulating Compensated Absences Adjustment Account (2)
57,416  Tofal Unusable Reserves 71,068
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Revaluatign Reserve

The Revaluation Reserve coniains the gains made by the Board arising from increases in the value of its Property,
Plant and Equipment. The balance is reduced when assets with accumulated gains are:

e re-valued downwards or impaired and the gains are lost
« used in the provision of services and the gains are consumed through depreciation, or
+ disposed of and the gains are realised

The Reserve contains only revaluation gains accumulated since 1 April 2007, the date that the Reserve was
created. Accumulated gains arising before that date are consolidated into the balance on the Capiial Adjustment
Account.

2011/2012 2012/2013
£000 £000
711 Balance at 1 April 711
- Downward revaluation of assets and impairment losses - {2)
ot charged to the Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of
Services
- Amount written off to the Capital Adjustment Account - 2)
711 Balance at 31 March 707

Gapital Adjustment Account

The Capital Adjustment Account absorbs the timing differences arising from the different atrangements for
accounting for the consumption of non-current assets and for financing the acquisition, construction or
enhancement of those assets under statutory provisions. The Account is debited with the cost of acquisition,
construction or enhancement as depreciation and impairment losses are charged to the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement. The Account is credited with the amounts set aside by the Board as finance for the
costs of acquisition, construction and enhancement. The Account contains accumulated gains and losses on
Investment Properties that have yet to be consumed by the Board. The Account also contains revaluation gains
accumulated on Property, Plant and Equipment before 1 April 2007, the date that the Revaluation Reserve was
created to hold such gains. Note 5 provides details of the source of all the transactions posted to the Account,
apart from those involving ihe Revaluation Reserve.
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2011/2012
£000

2012/2013

£000

51,559

Balance at 1 April

58,789

Reversal of items relaling to capital expenditure debited or
credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement:

{1,453)

s Charges for depreciation and impairment of non current
assets

(1,559)

s Amounts of non current assets written off on disposal or
sale as part of the gain/loss on dispesal o the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

(98)

Adjusting amounts written out of the Revaluation Reserve

{2)

(1,453)

Net written out amount of the cost of non current assets
consumed in the year

(1,659)

Capital financing applied in the year:

« Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance new capital
expenditure

8,668

+ Capital grants and contributions credited 1o the
Comprehensive income and Expenditure Statement that
have been applied to capital financing

15,468

8,671

Total Capital Financing Applied during the year

12

Movements in the market value of Investment Properties
debited or credited to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement

58,789

Balance at 31 March

15,469
(23)

72,576

Pensions Reserve

The Pensions Reserve absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements for accounting for
post employment benefits and for funding benefits in accordance with statutory provisions. The Board accounts for
post employment benefits in the Gomprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as the benefits are earned by
employees accruing years of service, updating the liabilities recogrised to reflect inflation, changing assumptions
and investment returns on any resources set aside to meet the costs. However, statutory arrangements require
benefits earned to be financed as the Board makes employer's contributions to pensions funds or eventually pays
any pensions for which it is directly responsible. The debit balance on the Pensions Reserve therefore shows a
substantial shortfall in the benefits earned by past and current employees and the resources the Board has set
aside 1o meet them. The statutory arrangements will ensure that funding will have been set aside by the time the

henefits come to be paid.

2011/2012 2012/2013
£000 £000
{1,747) Balance at 1 April (2,072)
{a55) Actuarial gains or {fosses) on pensions assets and liabilities (72)
{(116) Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited or credited to (214)
the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
147 Employer's pensions contributions and direct paymenis to 145
pensioners payable in the year
(2,072) Balance at 31 March (2,213}
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Accurpulating Compensated Abgences Adjustment Accaunt

The Accumulating Compensated Absences Adjustment Account absorbs the differences that would otherwise arise
on the General Reserve Balance from accruing for compensated absences earned but not taken in the year.
Statutory arrangements require that the impact on the General Reserve Balance is neutralised by transfers to or

from the Account.

201172012 201212013
£000 £000
(10y  Balance at 1 April {12}
10 Settlernent or cancellation of accrual made at the end of the 12 -
preceding year
(12)  Amounts accrued at the end of the current year {2) -

Amount by which officer remuneration charged to the

(2) Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement on an 10
aceruals basis is different from remuneration chargeable in the
year in accordance with statutory requirements

(12)  Balance at 31 March (2)

11, CASH FLOW STATEMENT - INVESTING ACTIVITIES

2011/2012 2012/2013
2000 £000
6,908 Purchase of property, plant and equipment, investment property 17,430
and intangible assets
(3) Proceeds from the sale of properiy, plant and equipment, (1)
investment property and intangible assets
(11,350) Other receipts from investing activities (11,279)
(4,445) Net cash flows from investing activities 6,150

12.  CASH FLOW STATEMENT - FINANCING ACTIVITIES

2011/2012 2012/2013
£000 £000
(13)  Other receipts from financing activities (28)
{13)  Net cash flows from financing activities (26)

13.  CASH FLOW STATEMENT - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents is made up of the foliowing elements:

31 March 31 March
2012 2013
2000 £000

8,155 Bank current account 3,404
8,155 Total cash and cash equivalents 3,404
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14. AMOUNTS REPORTED FOR RESOURCE ALLOCATION DECISIONS
Decisions about resource allocation are taken by the Board on the basis of budget reporis analysed across
operational divisions. These reports are prepared on a different basis from the accounting policies used in the
financial statements. In particular:
« 1o charges are made in relation to capital expenditure (whereas depreciation and impairment losses) are
charged to services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement)
» the cost of retirement benefits is based on cash flows (payment of employer's pensions contributions)
rather than current service cost of benefits accrued in the year
The income and expenditure of the Board's operational divisions recorded in the budget reports for the year is as
follows:
Plant & Bridge
Divisional Income and Expenditure Admin  Operations Equipment Maintenance Income Total
2012/2013 £000 £000 £000 £000 2000 £000
Interest and investment income - - - - (34) (34)
Government grants - - - - (1,524) {1,524}
Total Income - - - - {1,558) (1,558)
Employee expenses 182 470 - 414 - 1,066
Other service expenses 245 5 179 63 - 492
Total Expenditure 427 475 179 477 - 1,558
Net Expenditure 427 475 179 477 {1,558) -
Plant & Bridge
Divisional Income and Expenditure Admin  Operations Equipment Maintenance Income Total
2011/2012 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Interest and investment income - - - - (36} {(36)
Government grants - - - - {1,540) {1,540)
Total Income - - - - (1,576) (1,578)
Employee expenses 180 481 - 397 - 1,058
Other service expenses 240 5 169 104 - 518
Total Expenditure 420 486 169 501 - 1,576
Net Expenditure 420 486 169 501 (1,576) -

Reconciliation of Divisional Income and Expenditure to Cost of Services in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement

This reconciliation shows how the figures in the analysis of divisional income and expenditure relate lo the amounts
included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

2011/2012 2012/2013
£000 £000

Net expenditure in the Divisional Analysis - -
Net expenditure of services not included in the Analysis - -
Amourts in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement not
reported to management in the Analysis 3,196 3,314
Amounts included in the Analysis not included in the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement {147) (145)
Cost of Services in Comprehensive income and Expenditure Statement 3,048 3,169
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Reconciliaiion to Subjective Analysis

This reconciliation shows how the figures in the analysis of divisional income and expenditure relate to a subjective
analysis of the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services included in the Comprehensive Income and

Expenditure Statement.

2012/2013

Interest and investment income
Government grants and contributions
Total Income

Employee expenses

Other service expenses
Depreciation, amortisation and
impairment

Total expenditure

Surplus or deficit on the provision
of services

2011/2012

Interest and investment income
Government grants and contributions
Total Income

Employee expenses

Other service expenses
Depreciation, ~ amaortisation  and
impairment

Total expenditure

Surplus or deficit on the provision
of services

15, EXTERNAL AUDIT COSTS

Amounts  Amounts
not not
Operational reported  included Cost of Corporate

Bivisions to mgmt in CIES Services Amounts Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
(34) - - (39) 128 94
(1,524} - - (1,524) (11,278) (12,802}
(1,558) - - {1,558) (11,150) (12,708)
1,086 197 {145) 1,118 - 1,118
492 - - 492 - 492
- 1,559 - 1,559 - 1,559
1,558 1,756 (145) 3,169 - 3,169
- 1,756 {145} 1,611 (11,150)_ (9,539)

Amounts  Amounts
not not
Operational reporied  included Cost of Corporate

Divisions to mgmt in CIES Services Amounts Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 2000
(36) - - {36) (63) (99)
{1,540) - - (1,540) {11,350} (12,890)
(1,576) - - (1,576) (11,413) {12,989)
1,058 187 (147} 1,078 - 1,078
518 - - 518 - 518
. 1,453 - 1,453 - 1,453
1,576 1,620 (147) 3,049 - 3,049
- 1,620 (147 1,473 (11,413) (9,940)

The Board has incurred the following costs in relation to the audit of the Statement of Accounts, certification of
grant claims and statutory inspectiens and to other non-audit services provided by the Board's external auditors:

Fees payable to Audit Scotland with regard to external audit services

carried out by the appointed auditor for the year

Total

37

2011/2012 2012/2013

£000 £000
12 11
12 11
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16,

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION SCHEMES
Participation in pension schemes

As part of the terms and conditions of employment of its officers, the Board makes contributions towards the cost of
post employment benefits. Although these benefits will not actually be payable until employees retire, the Board
has a commitment to make the payments and this needs to be disclosed at the time that employees earn their
future entitlement.

The Board participates in two post employment schemes:

« The Local Government Pension Scheme (Tayside Superannuation Fund), which is administered locally by
Dundee City Council and is a funded defined benefit final salary scheme, meaning that the Board and
employees pay contributions into a fund, calculated at a leve! intended to batance the pensions liabilities with
investment assets.

« Arrangements for the award of discretionary post retirement benefits upon early retirement — this is an
unfunded defined benefit final arrangement, under which liabilities are recognised when awards are made.
However, there are no investment assets built up to meet the pensions liabilities, and cash has to be
generated to mest actual pensions payments as they eventually fall due.

Transactions relating to post employment benefits

The Board recognises the cost of retirement benefits in the reported cost of services when they are earned by
employees, rather than when the benefits are eventually paid as pensions. However, the charge the Board is
required 1o make against the cost of service is based on the cash payable in the year, so the real cost of post
employment/retirement benefits is reversed out of the General Reserve via the Movement in Reserves Statement.
The following transactions have been made in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and the
General Reserve Balance via the Movement in Reserves Statement during the year:

Local Government
Pension Scheme
£000

2011/2012 2012/2013

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Siatement:

Cost of Services:
» current service cost 165 207
» past service costs - -

Financing and Investment Income and Expendifure

+ interest cost 357 346
+ expected return on scheme assels (406} (339)
Total Post Employment Benefit Charged o the 116 214

Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services

Other Post Employment Benefit Charged to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

» actuarial (gains) and losses 355 72
Total Post Employment Benefit Charged 1o the v gl 286
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement

Movement in Reserves Statement:

« reversal of net charges made to the (116) (214)
Surplus or Deficit {or the Provision of
Services for post employment benefits
in accordance with the Code
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Local Government
Pension Scheme
£000

2011/2012 2012/2013

Actual amount charged against the General Fund
Balance for pensions in the year:

« employers’ contributions payable to 147 145
scheme

s retirement benefits payable to - -
pensioners

Assets and liabilities in relation to post employment benefits

Reconciliation of present value of the scheme liabilities {defined benefit obligation):

Funded liabilities: Local Government
Pension Scheme

£000
2011/2012 2012/2013
Opening balance at t April 6,946 7,633
Current service cost 165 207
Interest cost 357 346
Contributions by scheme participants 48 45
Setttements and curtailments . -
Actuarial gains and losses 359 666
Benefits paid {240} {255)
Closing balance at 31 March 7,633 8,643

Recongiliation of fair value of the scheme assets:

l.ocal Government Pensicn Scheme

£000
2011/2012 20122013
Opening balance at 1 April 5,199 5,561
Expected rate of return 406 339
Actuariat gains and (losses) 3 594
Employer contributions 147 145
Contributions by scheme participants 46 46
Benefits paid {240) (255)
Closing balance at 31 March 5,561 6,430

The expected return on scheme assels is delermined by considering the expected returns available on the assets
underlying the current investment policy. Expected yields on fixed interest investments are based on gross redemption
yislds as at the Balance Sheet date. Expected returns on equily investments reflect long-term real rates of return
experienced in the respective markets,

The actual return on scheme assets in the year was £932,000 {2011/2012: £23,000).

39



82

Scheme history:

2008/2009 2009/201¢  2010/2011 20112012 2012/2013

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Present value of liabilities (5,191} (7,7486) (6,946) (7,633) {8,643)
Fair vaiue of assets in the Local 3,750 4,953 5,189 5,561 6,430
Government Pension Scheme
Surplus/(deficit} in the scheme (1,441) (2,793) (1,747) (2,072) (2,213)

The liabilities show the underlying commitments that the Board has in the long run to pay post employment (retirernent)
henefits. The total liability of £2.213m Is reflected in the Board's Balance Sheet. However, statutory arrangements for
funding the deficit mean that the financial position of the Board remains healthy. The deficit on the local government
scheme will be made good by increased contributions over the remaining working life of employees (i.e., before payments
fall due), as assessed by the scheme actuary.

The total contributions expected to be made to the Local Government Pension Scheme by the Board in the year to 31
March 2014 is £135,000.

Basis for estimating assets and liabilities

Liabilities have been assessed on an actuarial basis using the projected unit method, an estimate of the pensions that will
be payable in future years dependent on assumptions about mortality rates, salary levels, etc. The Tayside
Superannuation Fund has been assessed by Barnett Waddingham, an independent tirm of actuaries, being based on the
latest full valuation of the scheme as at 31 March 2011.

The principal assumptions used by ihe actuary have been:

Local Government
Pension Scheme

2011/2012 2012/2013
Long-term expected rate of return on assets in the scheme 6.1% 6.1%
Mortality assumptions:
Longevity at 65 for current pensioners (years):
Men 20.6 20.6
Women 228 229

l.ongevity at 65 for future pensicners (years):

Men 21.8 21.9

Women 24.4 24.5
Rate of inflation {RP1} 3.3% 3.3%
Rate of Inflation (CPI) 2.5% 2.5%
Rate of increase in salaries 4.8% 4.7%
Rate cf increase in pensions 2.5% 2.5%
Rate for discounting scheme liabilities 4.6% 4.1%
Take-up of option to convert annual pension into retirement 50% 50%

lump sum

40



The Tayside Superannuation Fund's assets consist of the following categories, by proportion of the total assels held:

31 March 2012 31 March 2013

% %
Equity investments 68 71
Gilis 8 7
Other Bonds (R 11
Property 11 9
Cash 2 2
Total 100 100

History of experience gains and losses

The actuarial gains identified as movemenis on the Pensions Reserve in 2012/2013 can be analysed into the
following categories, measured as a percentage of asseis or liabilities at 31 March 2013:

2008/2009 2009/2010 2010/2011 2011/2012 2012/2013

% % % % %
Differences between the expected and actual return (19.7) 21.2 0.6 | 9.2
on assets ) )
Experience gains and fosses on liabilities (0.1} 0.2 0.0 6.9 0.0

17.  EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

There were no events that occurred between 1 April 2013 and 16 September 2013 that would have an impact on
the 2012/2013 financial statements. The latter date is the date on which the audited accounts were autherised for
issue by the Treasurer.

18. RELATED PARTIES

The Board is required to disclose material transactions with related parties — bodies or individuals that have the
potential to control or influence the Board or to be controlled or influenced by the Board. Disclosure of these
transactions allows readers to assess the extent to which the Board might have been constrained in its ability to
operate independantly or might have secured the ability to limit another party’s ability to bargain freely with the
Board.

Central Government

Central government has effective control over the general operations of the Board. It is responsible for providing
the statutory framework within which the Board operates, provides the majority of its funding in the form of grants
and prescribes the terms of many of the transactions that the Board has with other parties. Granis received from
government departments are set out in the subjective analysis in note 14 on amounts reported to decision makers.
There are no grant receipts outstanding at 31 March 2013 (see ncte 26).

Other Local Authorities
Angus, Dundee City and Fife Councils are considered to be related parties of the Board. During 2012/2013, the
Board entered inlo a number of transactions with Dundee City Council, as detailed below:

2071/2012 2012/2013
Ihcome  Expenditure Income  Expenditure
£000 £ooo £000 £000
Dundee City Council:
(286) - Interest Receivable {23) -
- 58 Central Support Services - 39
- 30 Miscellaneous - 3
(26) a8 Total (23) 42.
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18.

20.

The following balances existed between the Board and Dundee City Coungii as at 31 March 2013:

2011/2012 2012/2013

Asset Liability Asset Liability

£000 £000 £000 £000

Dundee City Council:

- 36 Central Support Services - 37
(26} - Interest Receivable (23} -
{546) 13 Miscellaneous - 3
(572) 45 Total (23} 40

LEASES
The Board as Lessee

The Baard held no assets on finance or operating lease during 2012/2013 and, accordingly, there were no lease
rentals paid to lessors during the year (2011/2012: None) or commitments due fo lessors in 2012/2013 (2011/2012:

None}).

The Board as Lessor

The Board had entered a three year agreement for the lease of fand and property to a third party which ended in
2011. This arrangement has continued on a monthly basis as permitted in the lease agreement. This agreement
is accounted for as an operating lease. In 2012/2013 the Board received rent of £10,213 from this agreement
{2011/2012: £10,213). The present value of minimum Jease payments receivable as at the Balance Sheet date are
as follows:

a) Not later than 1 year = £10,213

b) later than 1 year and not later than 5 years = £Nil

c) later than 5 years = £Nil.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The following items of income and expense have been accounted for in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement:
‘ 2011/2012 2012/2013

£000 £000
Rental income from investment property 10 10
Direct operating expenses arising from investmert (1) (1}
property
Net gain/(loss) 9 9

There are no restrictions on the Board’s ability to realise the value inherent in its investment property or on the
Board's right to the remittance of income and the proceeds of disposal.
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21.

The following iable summarises the movernent in the fair value of investment properties over the year.

2011/2012 2012/2013
£000 £000
Balance at start of the year 73 85
Additions:
Purchases - -
Subsequent expenditure - -
Disposals - -
Net gains/(losses) from fair value adjustments 12 (23)
Transfers:
toffrom Inventories - -
to/from Property, Plant and Equipment - -
Balance at end of the year 85 62
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Movements on Balances
Movements in 2012/2013:
Total
Other Land  Vehicles, Property,
and Plant & Infrastruciure Assets Under Plant &
Buildings Equip Assets Construction  Equipment
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Cost or Valuation
At 1 Aprit 2012 1,244 753 66,257 469 68,723
Additions - 20 10,470 - 10,490
Additions - Ramp Work - - 36 4,942 4,978
Derecognition — Disposals - (1) (211} - (212)
Expenditure Not Adding Value - - (77) - 77
Other movemenits in Cost or - 2) - - 2)
Valuation
At 31 March 2013 1,244 770 76,475 5411 83,900
Accumulated Depreciation and
Impairment
At 1 Aprit 2012 28 298 9,029 - 9,355
Depreciation charge 14 50 1,419 - 1,483
Derecognition — Disposals - - {113} - (113)
At 31 March 2013 42 348 10,335 - 10,725
Net Book Value
At 31 March 2013 1,202 422 66,140 5,411 73,175
At 31 March 2012 1,216 455 57,228 469 59,368
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Comparative Movements in 2011/2012:

Total
Other Land  Vehicles, Property,
and Plant & infrastructure  Assets Under Plant &
Buildings Equipment Assets Construction Equipment
£000 £000 2000 £000 £000

Cost or Valuation
At 1 April 2011 1,244 739 56,239 1,810 60,132
Additions - 14 6,107 - 6,121
Additions - Ramp Work - - - - -
Derecognition - Disposals - - - - -
Expenditure Not Adding Value - - {(80) - (80)
Other movements in Cost or - - 3,991 (1,441) 2.550
Valuation
At 31 March 2012 1,244 753 66,257 469 68,723
Accumulated Depreciation
and Impairment
At 1 April 2011 14 248 7.721 - 7,983
Depreciation charge 14 50 1,308 - 1,372
Derecognition - Disposals - - - - -
At 31 March 2012 ] 28 ) 298 9,029 - 9,355
Net Book Value ‘
At 31 March 2012 1,216 455 57,228 469 59,368
At 31 March 2011 1,230 491 43,518 1,910 52,149

Capital Commitments

At 31 March 2013, the Board has entered inlo a number of contracts for the construction or enhancement of
Property, Plant and Equipment in 2013/2014 and future years, budgeted to cost £445,000. (Similar commitments
at 31 March 2012 were £12,059,000). The major commitment is for:

»  Pier Collision Protection Works - £400,000

Revaluations

The Authority carries out a rolling programme that ensures that all Property, Plant and Equipment required to be
measured at fair value is re-valued at least every five years. Al valuations were carried out by Mr Alan Bell BSc
MRICS, Registered Valuer for Dundee City Counci's City Development Department. Valuations of land and
buildings were carried out in accordance with the methodologies and bases for estimation set out in the
professional standards of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors.
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22,  CAPITAL EXPENDITURE AND CAPITAL FINANCING

The total amount of capital expenditure incurred in the year is shown in the table below, together with the resources

that have been used to finance it.

2011/2012 2012/2013

£000 £000
Capital investment:
Property, Plant and Equipment 6,122 10,480
Total Capital Investment 6,122 10,480
Sources of finance:
Capital receipts 3 1
Government grants and other contributions 6,119 10,489
Total Sources of Finance 6,122 10,490
23. INVENTORIES
Maintenance Total
Materials
201172012 2012/2013  2011/2012  2012/2013
£000 £000 £000 £000
Balance outstanding at start of year 47 47 47 47
Recognised as an expense in the year H - 1) -
Other Adjustments 1 - 1 -
Balance outstanding at year-end 47 47 47 47

24. SHORT-TERM DEBTORS

31 March 2012 31 March 2013

2000 £000
Local authorities 572 23
Other entities and individuals g 12
Total 581 35

25, SHORT-TERM CREDITORS

31 March 2012 31 March 2013

£000 £000
Central government bodies 161 345
Local authorities 127 767
Other entities and individuals 2,079 138
Total 2,367 1,250
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GRANT INCOME

The Board credited the following grants, contributions and donations to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Account in 2012/2013:

2011/2012 201272013
£000 £000
Credited to Taxation and Non Specific Grant Income
Scotiish Government Revenue Grant 1,540 1,524
Scottish Government Capital Grant 8,880 6,300
Dundee City Council Capital Grant 2,550 4,978
Total 12,890 12,802

The Board has £336,000 of Revenue granis, contributions and donations that have yet to be recegnised as income

due to them having conditions attached to them that requires the monies or propesty to be returned to the grant
provider (2011/2012: £160,000}.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Independent auditor’s report to the members of the Tay Road Bridge Joint Board and the Accounts Commission
for Scotland

We have audited the financial statements of the Tay Road Bridge Joint Board for the year ended 31 March 2013 set out
on pages 16 fo 46. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and
International Financial Reporting Standards (I[FRSs) as adopted by the European Union, and as interpreted and adapted
by the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2012/2013 (the 2013 Code).

This report is made solely to the members of the Tay Road Bridge Joint Board and the Accounts Commission for
Scotland, in accordance with Part VII of the Local Government (Scoiland) Act 1973. Our audit work has been undertaken
so that we might state o those iwo parties those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no
other purpose. To the fullest exient permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the
Tay Road Bridge Joint Board and the Accounts Commission for Scotland, for this report, or the opinions we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of the Treasurer and auditor

As explained more fully in the Statement of Respansibilities on page 15, the Treasurer is responsible for the preparation of
financial statermnents which give a true and fair view. Our responsibility is to audit, and express an opinion on, the financial
statements in accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) as required by the
Code of Audit Practice approved by the Accounts Commission for Scotland. Those standards reguire us to comply with
the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors.

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit invalves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give
reasonable assurance that the financial statements are freg from material misstaternent, whether caused by fraud or error,
This includes an assessment of. whether the accounting policies are appropriate fe the body's circumstances and have
been consistently applied and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates mads by the
Treasurer; and the overall presentation of the financial statements. In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial
information in the statement of accounts to identify material misstatements or inconsistencies with the audited financial
statements. If we become aware of any apparent material misstatemenis or inconsistencies we consider the implications
for our report.

Opinien on financiai statements

In our opinion the financial statements:

«  give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the body as at 31 March 2013 and of its expenditure and income for
the year then ended;

. have been properly prepared in accordance with the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United
Kingdom 2012/2013; and

. Have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973 and the
Local Government Scotland Act 2003,

Cpinion on other matters prescribed by the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973
In our opinion:

. The part of the Remuneration Report to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the Local
Awuthority Accounts {Scotland} Regulations 1985; and

*  The information given in the Treasurer's Report for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared
is consistent with the financial statements.
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of the Tay Road Bridge Joint Board and the Accounts Commission
for Scotland {continued)

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Local Government {Scotland) Act 1973 requires us
to report to you if, in cur opinion:

adequate accounting records have not been kept; or

the financial statements and the part of the Remuneration Report to be audited are not in agreement with the
accounting records; or

we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or
the Annual Governance Statement does not comply with Delivering Good Governance in Local Government; or

there has been a failure to meet a prescribed financial objective.

Stephen Reid

for and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accouniants

Saltire Court

20 Castle Terrace

Edinburgh

EH1 2EG

19 September 2013
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REPORT TO: TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD - 16 SEPTEMBER 2013

REPORT ON: INTERNAL AUDIT - AUDIT NEEDS ASSESSMENT AND STRATEGIC PLAN
2013 to 2016

REPORT BY: TREASURER

REPORT NO: TRB 15-2013 ITEM NO: e

1 PURPOSE OF REPORT

To present to the Board the Internal Audit Needs Assessment and Strategic Plan 2013
to 2016, which is attached as an appendix to this report.

2 RECOMMENDATIONS

The Board is asked to approve the three year Strategic Audit Plan which has been based on
the detailed Internal Audit Needs Assessment.

3 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
The cost of Internal Audit Services is included in the approved Revenue Budget.

4 MAIN TEXT

The Board has a responsibility to develop and maintain internal control systems, risk
management processes, governance arrangements and accounting records. In
addition, the Board is responsible for ensuring that the Board's resources are used
appropriately for the activities intended, fraud and other irregularities are prevented and
detected, and the principles of Best Value are complied with. Internal audit reviews
support management by giving an independent assessment of the adeguacy and
effectiveness of internal controls.

The Board's Internal Audit Service is provided by Henderson Loggie in respect of the
financial years 2013/14 to 2015/16, and the Audit Needs Assessment (ANA) and
Strategic Plan has been prepared by them with reference to the CIPFA Code of Practice
for Internal Audit in Local Government in the United Kingdom.

The purpose of the ANA is to identify the main areas where the Board is exposed to risk
that can be managed through internal control, and which therefore should be considered

by internal audit.

Risks have been split into six categories: Reputation; Staffing Issues; Estates and
Facilities: Financial Issues; Organisational Issues; and Information and IT.

Foliowing identification of the key controls and associated risks, the different areas of
risk have been assessed using the following criteria:

+ Risk Impact
¢ Risk Likelihood
+ Present Controls

The results obtained from the assessment process identified and prioritised the areas

TRE 152013 — A& ANA & 8P 13714 10 1816180813
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requiring internal audit coverage over the next three years.

The Internal Audit Strategic Plan allocates audit days to the categories identified in the
ANA to give a rolling programme of work which will be updated annually to ensure that
any new and/or changed risks are reflected in the annual plan.

The Strategic Audit Plan allows for 30 days of audit work to be undertaken in respect of
each of the financial years 2013/14 to 2015/16.

5 POLICY IMPLICATIONS
This report has been screened for any policy implications in respect of Sustainability,

Strategic Environmental Assessment, Anti-Poverty, Equality Impact Assessment and
Risk Management. There are no major issues identified.

6 CONSULTATIONS

The Bridge Manager and the Clerk to the Board have been consulted on the content of
this report.

7 BACKGROUND PAPERS

None

MARJORY M STEWART :
TREASURER 3 SEPTEMBER 2013

TRE 15-2013-1A ANA 8 5P 13/14 10 15M16 - 1808913
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Strategic Plan

Proposed Allocation of Audit Days

Planned
13114
Days

Planned
14115
Days

Planned
15/16
Pays

Reputation
Health and Safely

Staffing Issues
Recruitment and retention / HR policies
Payrol

Estates and Facilities

Physical Security )
Asset management )
Delivery of major projects

Financial issues

Budget setting / budgetary control
General fedger*™

Procurement and creditors / purchasing
Deblors /income

Cash & bank / Treasury management™

Crganisational Issues

Risk management/ Business continuify®
Cormporate governance and conirol environment
Corporate planning

Insurance arrangements™

[nformation and IT
IT network arrangements
Data protection / FOI

Other Audit Activities
Management and Planning )
External audit )
Attendance at audit committees )
Follow-up reviews

ANA

Total

4

W

&

30

30

* & ** these projects will be linked

Audit Needs Assessment and
: Strategic Plan 213 to 2016

HENDERSON LOGGIE
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REPORT TO: TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD - 16 SEPTEMBER 2013

REPORT ON: INTERNAL AUDIT - ANNUAL AUDIT PLAN 2013/2014

REPORT BY: TREASURER

REPORT NO: TRB 16-2013

1

PURPOSE OF REPORT

To present to the Board the Internal Audit Annual Audit Plan, which is attached as an
appendix to this report.

RECOMMENDATIONS

It is recommended that the Board notes the contents of the Internal Audit Annual Plan
for 2013/2014 which is based on the detailed Internal Audit Needs Assessment and
Strategic Plan 2013 to 2016.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
The cost of Internal Audit Services is included in the approved Revenue Budget.
BACKGROUND

Reference is made to Report TRB 15-2013 (See Agenda ltem 7) whereby the Board was
asked to approve the three year Strategic.Audit Plan which was based on the detailed
Internal Audit Needs Assessment (ANA).

The Board has a responsibility to develop and maintain internal control systems, risk
management processes, governance arrangements and accounting records. In
addition, the Board is responsible for ensuring that the Board's resources are used
appropriately for the activities intended, fraud and other irregularities are prevented and
detected, and the principles of Best Value are complied with. Internal audit reviews
support management by giving an independent assessment of the adequacy and
effectiveness of internal controls.

The Board's Internal Audit Service is provided by Henderson Loggie in respect of the
financial years 2013/14 fo 2015/16, and the Audit Needs Assessment (ANA) and
Strategic Plan were prepared by them with reference to the CIPFA Code of Practice for
Internal Audit in Local Government in the United Kingdom.

The ANA identified the main areas where the Board is exposed to risk that can be
managed through internal control, and which therefore should be considered by internal
audit. The results obtained from the assessment process identified and prioritised the
areas requiring internal audit coverage over the next three years.

The Internal Audit Strategic Plan allocates audit days to the categories identified in the
ANA to give a rolling programme of work which will be updated annually to ensure that
any new and/or changed risks are reflected in the annual plan. The three year Strategic
Audit Plan allows for 30 days in 2013/2014.

TRE 18-2013 - 1A Annual Plan 13-14 -~ 180813
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5 MAIN TEXT

The Internal Audit Annual Audit Plan for 2013/2014, which is attached as an Appendix to
this report, sets out the proposed audit work to be undertaken in 2013/2014. This will
result in separate reports being issued for each review. The reviews will cover the
following areas:

Health and Safety;

Payroll;

General Ledger;

Procurement and Creditors / Purchasing;
Risk Management / Business Continuity; and
Follow-Up Reviews. -

6 POLICY IMPLICATIONS
This report has been screened for any policy implications in respect of Sustainability,
Strategic Environmental Assessment, Anti-Poverty, Equality Impact Assessment and
Risk Management. There are no major issues identified.

7 CONSULTATIONS

The Bridge Manager and the Clerk to the Board have been consulted on the content of
this report.

8 BACKGROUND PAPERS

None

MARJORY M STEWART
TREASURER 3 SEPTEMBER 2013

TEE 18-2043 - 1A Annual Flan 13-14 - 180813
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1. Infroduction HENDERSON LOGGIE

1.1 The purpose of this document is to present to the Tay Road Bridge Joint Board (‘the Board”)
the annual internal audit operating plan for the financial year ended 31 March 2014. The plan
is based on the proposed allocation of audit days for 2013/14 set out in the Audit Needs
Assessment and Strategic Plan 2013 fo 2016. The preparation of the Strategic Plan involved
dialogue with the Bridge Manager and with the Treasurer.

1.2 At Section 3 of this report we have set out the outline scope and objectives for each audit
assignment for 2013/14, together with the audit approach. These were arrived at following
consultation with the Bridge Manager.

1.3 Separate reports will be issued for each assignment. Recommendations are graded in each
report to reflect the significance of the issues raised.

Tay Road Bridge Joint Board Annual Plan 2013/14
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2. Strategic Plan 2013 to 2016

HENDERSON LOGGIE

Proposed Allocation of Audit Days

Planned
13/14
Days

Planned Planned
14115 15116
Days Days

Reputation
Health and Safety

Staffing lssues
Recruitment and retention / HR policies
Payroll

Estates and Facilities

Physical Securify }
Asset management }
Delivery of major projects

Financial Issues

Budget setting / budgetary control
General ledger™

Procurement and credifors / purchasing
Debtaors /income

Cash & bank / Treasury management™

Organisational Issues

Risk management / Business confinuity™
Corporafe governarce and control environment
Corporate planning

Insurance arrangements™

Information and IT
IT network arrangements
Data protection / FOI

Other Audit Activities
Management and Planning 3
External audit )
Attendance at audit committees )
Follow-up reviews

ANA

Contingency

Total

4

%]

AT

30

30 30

* & ** these projects will be linked

Tay Road Bridge Joint Board Annual Plan 2013/14
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3. Outline Scope and Objectives HENDERSON LOGGIE
Audit Assignment: Health and Safety

Priority: Medium

Joint Board Meeting: December 2013

Days: 4

Scope

This audit will review the arrangements in place within the Board to deal with Health and Safety (H&S)
issues.

Objectives

The main objective of this audit will be to review the Board's overall arrangements for dealing with
H&S issues and to censider whether these are adequate.

We will seek to obtain reasonable assurance that the Board has:

. a H&S policy and documented procedures which are communicated to all staff,

. a formal risk identification and assessment process;

. a H&S training programme which includes induction training, refresher training and fraining for
new equipment or legistation;

. regutar monitoring of H&S systems to ensure that they are functioning effectively including H&S

audits, carried out either internally or by external agencies such as the Health and Safety
Execuiive (HSE);

. an incident and accident recording system with follow-up and implementation of new controls
where required; and .
. regular reporting of H&S to management and fo the Board.

Our audit approach will be:

From discussion with appropriate staff and review of procedural documentation, we will identify the
internal controls in place and compare these with expected controls. A walkthrough of key systems
will then be undertaken to confirm our understanding and this will be followed up with compliance
testing where considered necessary. We will report on any areas where expected controls are found
to be absent or where confrols could be further strengthened.

Tay Road Bridge Joint Board Annual Plan 2013/14 3
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H
3. Outline Scope and Objectives HENDERSON LOGGIE
Audit Assignment: Payroll
Priority: Low
Joint Board Meeting: June 2014
Days: 4
Scope

This audit will review the adequacy and effectiveness of the processes and procedures in place to
ensure that payments made on the payroll system are valid, authorised, made accurately, and
monitored. The audit will cover the input and outputs from the Dundee City Council payroll system but
not the Council system itself.

Objectives

The specific objectives of the review will be to seek reasonable assurance that:

. all new posts are appropriately approved; |

. starters and leavers are properly treated and enter and leave the payroll system at the correct
dates;

. there is correct calculation of gross pay and deductions, including PAYE, national insurance and
pension contributions;

. overtime payments and other variations to pay are properly authorised, processed and
recorded;

. there is robust approval and checking of changes to employee standing data;

. payroll reconciliations are completed and reviewed on a timely basis;

.. monitoring information is adequate for identifying incorrect payroll payments and to allow budget

holders to manage their budgets effectively; and
. payments, whether to staff or paying deductions over to third parties, are properly authorised,
processed and recorded within the Board's main financial system.

Our audit approach will be:

From discussion with relevant staff, and review of procedural documentation, we will identify the key
internal controls in place within the payroll system and compare these with expected controls. Audit
testing will then be carried out to ensure that the controls in place are operating effectively.

Tay Road Bridge Joint Board Annual Plan 2013114 4
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3. Outline Scope and Objectives HENDERSON LOGGIE
Audit Assignment: General Ledger

Priority: Low

Joint Board Meeting: March 2013

Days: 3

Scope

We will review the following processes as part of the audit:

. month-end financial close process;

. year-end financial close process; and

. updating user access rights and adding f removing users on the main financial system.
Objectives

The objective of aur audit will be to obtain reasonable assurance that systems are in place lo ensure
that:

. the chart of accounts, coding structure, reports and procedures are adequate in respect of
production of the Board's management accounts and financial statements;

. key controls are in place over the trial balance structure, control account reconciliations and
journal entries;

. there is adequate control and reconciliation of the main feeder systems to the general ledger;
and

. changes to the main financial system's user access rights, the addition of new users and

removal of leavers are appropriately approved and updated on a fimely basis.

Our audif approach will be:

We will assess whether the above objectives are being met by documenting the systems and confrols
through interviews with relevant staff. We will also establish whether the expected key controls are in
place by reference to CIPFA standard control risk assessment templates for a general ledger system.

Walkthrough and compliance testing will be performed to determine whether key controls are working
effectively.

Tay Road Bridge Joint Board Annual Plan 2013/14 5



136

05

3. Outline Scope and Objectives HENDERSON LOGGIE
Audit Assignment: Procurement and Creditors / Purchasing

Priority: Mediurmn

Joint Board Meeting: June 2013

Days: 4

Scope

This audit will focus on the systems of internal control in place for the ordering of goods and services
and the payment of invoices.

We will also consider whether the procurement strategy followed and procedures in place support best
value purchasing in relation to non-pay spend (other operating expenses plus equipment fixed asset
additions).

Objectives

The specific objectives of the audit will be to ensure that:

. procurement procedures support best value purchasing in relation to non-pay spend;

. procurement procedures are appropriate for all levels of expenditure and are complied with
throughout the organisation;

. the risk of unauthorised and excessive expenditure is minimised;

. all liabilities are fully and accurately recorded; and

. all payments are properly authorised, processed and recorded.

Our audit approach will be:

From discussions with the Bridge Manager and other relevant staff, we will establish what
procurement strategies, procedures and monitoring arrangements are in place. These will then be
evaluated to establish if they follow recognised good practice.

Specifically, we will seek to establish whether the procurement procedures ensure that areas of high
spend are monitored appropriately, identifying opportunities for pooling of expenditure in order to
achieve best value, and ensuring that joint purchasing arrangements are utilised where appropriate.

A sample of items of expenditure will be selected from the financial ledger and tested to ensure
compliance with the Board's Financial Regulations and Procedures.

Tay Road Bridge Joint Board Annual Plan 2013/14 6
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3. Outline Scope and Objectives HENDERSON LOGGIE
Audit Assignment: Risk Management / Business Condinuity

Priority: Medium

Joint Board Meeting: March 2013

Days: 5

Scope

Risk Management

The scope of this audit will be to consider whether there are corporate procedures in place to
adequately assess risk and minimise the possibility of unexpected and unplanned situations
developing.

Business Continuity
We will also consider whether there are adequate pians in place to minimise disruption to aperations
following loss of life, buildings or equipment.

Objectives

Risk Management
The main objective of our audit will be to obtain reasonable assurance that systems in place are
sufficient to ensure that:

. there is a process in place to provide reasonable assurance to the Board and to the Bridge
Manager in relafion fo the declaration on risk required for the financial statements;
. A formal risk management process is in place which includes:
. Assessing the organisation’s propensity for risk;
. Risk identification;
. Risk assessment;
. Risk mitigation;
. Risk reporting; and
. Risk monitoring;
. Risk management policies and processes are formally documented;
. Risk management tools are used;
. Responsibility for managing risks are clearly assigned,;
. Staff are trained in risk management; and
. There is an ongoing review of risk management procedures for continual improvement.
. key risks have been identified and are being appropriately controlled and mitigated.

Business Contintuity
To obtain reasonable assurance that:

. Business Continuity Plans (BCPs) are in place covering all of the Board's activities;

. the BCPs are workable, properly communicated to members of staif, and have been adequately
tested; and

. the processes and procedures in place follow recommended good practice as defined by BS

259899 '‘Business continuity management'.

Tay Road Bridge Joint Board Annual Plan 2013/14 7
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3. Outline Scope and Objectives HENDERSON LOGGIE

Audit Assignment: Risk Management f Business Continuity (Cont'd)

Cur audit approach will be:

Risk Management

We will discuss the risk management process with staff and review appropriate policies and
procedures. Risk management documents and reports, such as the risk register, will then be
reviewed. For a sample of managers and staff we will discuss the risk management process they use
in order to determine how embedded risk management is within the organisation.

Consider whether all relevant key risks have been identified and included on the Risk Register.
Business Continuify
Obtain copies of BCPs in place and consider whether they cover all of the organisation’s activities.

Discuss the Board's approach to business continuity with the Bridge Manager and review evidence of
how plans have been communicated to staff and the extent to which plans have been ested.

An assessment of the key processes and internal controls will be performed with reference to the
guidance contained within BS 25998,

Tay Road Bridge Joint Board Annual Plan 2013/14 8



REPORT TO: TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD — 16" September 2013

REPORT ON: REPORT ON ANNUAL REVIEW OF STRATEGIC RISK MANAGEMENT
REPORT BY: THE BRIDGE MANAGER

REPORT NO: TRB 18- 2013 TEM Ne G

1.1

4.1

5.1

6.1

7.1

PURPOSE OF REPORT
To appraise the Joint Board of the annual review of Strategic Risk Management issues.
RECOMMENDATIONS

The Board are asked to note the contents of this Report as at 31 July 2013 and changes
made to the Strategic Risk Register given in Appendix A.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

There are no financial implications as a result of this report.
POLICY IMPLICATIONS

None.

OUTCOME OF REVIEW

The Board's Risk Management Strategic Plan and Risk Register (2010-2012) were approved
in March 2010.

As part of the ongoing management of risk it was agreed that the Risk Register would be
reviewed annually and updated to take account of new or changed risks faced by the Board.

This review was carried out in July 2013 in conjunction with the Insurance and Risk Manager
from Dundee City Council and it can be reported that the previously identified major risk to
the TRBJB’s operation, namely impact damage to the bridge from ship collision, has been

greatly mitigated as a result of the completion of the Pier Collision Protection Works and this
risk now sits in the low risk status.

There have been no new major risks identified or any changes to other previously identified
risks that require any changes to the Strategic Risk Register

CONSULTATIONS

The Treasurer, Clerk and Engineer to the Board have been consulted in the preparation of
this report.

BACKGROUND PAPERS

None

IAIN MACKINNON

139






140

BRIDGE MANAGER
22 August 2013
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TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD
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AND STRATEGIC RISK REGISTER

(2012-2014)
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INTRODUCTION
A working definition of Risk Managemient would be

"A management discipline through which concerted and co-ordinated action is taken
to identify, evaluate and control current and potential causes of loss which could
threaten the Board's ability to deliver an efficient and effective service."”

Skilled Risk Management offers the Tay Road Bridge Joint Board the prospect of
both tangible and intangible benefits, three examples of each are shown below:

Tangible Intangible
+ Reduced financial loss ¢ Better Public Image
« Fewer injuries to staff/public ¢ Orderly consideration of risk

« Preserved assets
(bridge/buildings/vehicles/
equipment)

[ntelligent application of Risk Management concepts should serve to reduce the "fear
of the unknown". [n this way the discipline should be viewed as a catalyst to service
delivery rather than viewed as a reason why certain activities cannot be undertaken.

To achieve this vision requires a disciplined approach to risk which percolates
through all levels of the Organisation and its numerous operations. [n tumn, fiers of
management require to absorb and apply Risk Management concepts in their every
day thinking and actions and in many ways this "cultural change" is the primary
objective of this first Risk Management Strategy Plan.

Whilst this objective could have previously been viewed as desirable, the heightened
profile of Corporate Governance in Local Government and the increasing external
focus by bodies such as Transport Scotland and Audit Scotland on the issue of
Organisational Risk Management increasingly demands attainment of the core
objective.
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POLICY STATEMENT

The Tay Road Bridge Joint Board is committed to the management of risk in order to:-

Minimise loss, damage or injury to Board employees or members of the public

Protect Board assets and property

Preserve and enhance the management and operation of the Tay Road Bridge
Maintain effective stewardship of pubiic funds

Promote a favourable corporate image

The efficient management of risk forms part of the Board's overall business objectives. To
achieve this, standards and principles will be developed and maintained. This process will
involve identification and evaluation of risks to create practical and cost effeciive means of

loss control and avoidance.

Risk management is recognised as a continuous process, demanding awareness and action
from employees at every level, to reduce the possibility and impact of injury and loss.






3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

RISK MANAGEMENT STRATEGY

The strategy aims to provide a framework for building a sustainable structure that
recognisably supports Risk Management across all areas of Board activity and allows for
monitoring and reporting on the effectiveness of that management.

Whilst acknowledging the majority of risks are relatively low-level in terms of severity there
are in addition significant Strategic or Corporate risks that must also be managed.

Status

Risk Management should be as much a part of the duties of all employees as are the control
of budgets and the deployment of staff and equipment.

It should also be an element of the consultation process prior to altering existing service
delivery and/or implementing new initiatives.

if the Board is to satisfy its external scrutiny obligations it will be required to demonstrate that
Risk Management is carried out in this systematic and structured manner and be subject to
monitoring.

Management Arrangements

Risk Management needs to be fully integrated with normal management processes., The
Bridge Manager is primarily responsible for the management of risk. The Treasurer is
required to produce and/or maintain:

. A Risk Register

. A Risk Management Action Plan to address unacceptable risk exposures which have
been detailed in the Risk Register
J Monitoring reports as appropriate

Risk Management Forums

It is acknowledged there can be high level areas of risk which would benefit from a Risk
Management forum.

It is proposed where such a need is identified, the forum will be chaired by the Bridge
Manager.

Accountability

Accountability for performance must be an integral part of the Risk Management process.
Progress ought to be monitored and the following routine reporting pattern will operate:

The Bridge Manager will report to the Board summarising Risk Management performance
and updating the Risk Register on an annual basis.

Monitoring and Review

Full implementation of this strategy will take time and effort. Similarly, adherence to its
requirements on an ongoing basis will require a resource commitment.

In mitigation it should be remembered that significant elements of the strategy are, already
being performed.

145
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The implementation and operation of the strategy will be kept under review {o ensure both
that it is operating effectively and that there are no aspects taking up disproportionate effort.

Management Information

Many aspects of the strategy will be driven by the quality of information available
over loss profiles. Risk Management Information is provided under a Service Level
Agreement with Dundee City Council.
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ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

Board Members

Board Members are responsible for making the strategic decisions affecting the
management and operation of the Tay Road Bridge. They are responsible for
understanding the strategic risks the Board has to face and be aware of how they
are managed.

Board Members main tasks are to:

s Approve the risk management Strategic Plan

o Monitor the reporting of risk management activity

« Approve the annual report on Risk Management performance.

Board Officers

The Bridge Manager is responsible for ensuring risks the Board face are adequately
managed. To enable the Bridge Manager to fulfil this responsibility he will liaise with
the following Board Officers on the various elements listed below:-

Clerk to the Board Legal, Contractual and Personnel related Risk
Engineer to the Board Engineering Risk

Treasurer to the Board Financial Risk

The Bridge Manager's key tasks will be to:

« Implement the risk management strategic plan.

e Review the Risk Register annually in conjunction with the Clerk, Engineer,
Treasurer and Dundee City Council's Risk Manager.
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5. Risk Management

5.1 Risk Identification Process

A number of techniques have been used to construct the Board's Risk Register.

The Risk Register identifies strategic and significant operational risks. [n addition, an
assessment of risk probability coupled with a risk severity analysis is included within
the register.

52 Risk Prioritisation and Control

Risks identified are prioritised in the following manner:

a Risk score determined through multiplication of probability and severity scores
as follows:-

Score | Probability | Severity
1 Rare Insignificant
2 Unlikely Minor
3 Possible Moderate
4 Likely Major
5 Certain Catastrophic

The Matrix produced using the above scores is shown below:-

Probability

Severity

10






5.3

5.4

b Risks are then prioritised using the "Traffic Light System" as indicated below:

Risk Status | Control Review Timescale

Score

1108 Risk adequately controlled | No specific action
required

910 16 Risk partially controlled Within 24 months

17 to 25 Further control required Within 12 months

The potential to control risks will be addressed continuously through the upkeep of
the Risk Register. Most risks are capable of being managed - by controlling the
probability or severity of the risk or both. Very few risks require to be avoided
completely.

It is anticipated that many risks will be realigned through this process. It is unrealistic
to conceive that at any given time all risks will be "Green" but it will be possible to
critically analyse risks with a view to improving their "score".

Monitorinq Arrangements

To avoid stagnation of the Risk register process the following monitoring
arrangements are in place.

. risk register to be reviewed annually or at the time of any
organisational/legislative changes

Current Risk Stafus

The following Risk Status graph has been prepared using the information taken from the
Strategic Risk Register in Appendix A. The numbers shown identify the risk stated in the
Register.

11
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